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Cultural Competitions

Winners in the UniCentre Acquisitive Art Award:

DJ Competition

2D
Commended
Phillip Constantine – Dream Journey

UNICENTRE INTERESTING ACHIEVEMENTS

UniBar won the 2001 Master Builders’ Association Excellence in Construction Award and the Best New or
Refurbished Facility at ACUMA 2001.
UniCentre also won the following awards at ACUMA 2001: Best Menu Presentation/Merchandise Brochure
for the Conferences and Functions Solutions brochure. Other awards included Runner Up for Best Innovation,
New Idea or Use of Technology (What’s On Email List) and Runner Up for Best Newsheet (TimeOut
entertainment newsletter).
Over 280 students competed in UniCentre competitions.
Of 45 Clubs and Societies there are over 2,000 members who received up to $30,000 in funding from the
UniCentre.
Over 90,000 queries were answered at the UniCentre Enquiries and Ticket Counter.

Ten entrants battled it out this year in the DJ
Competition, held on Wednesday 1 August
in the UniBar with over 300 on-lookers. A
very high standard proved to be very
popular with the crowd. The winner of the
Wollongong event, Sebastian Clarke, went
on to represent the University at UWS in the
state final.
1 st :
2 nd:
2 nd:
4 th:

DJ Flux, Sebastian Clarke
DJ DNA, Daniel Piper
ADSR, Tim Grey
DJ Stama, David Stamataros

3D
Winner
Emma Rutherford – Bottomless Pots
Runner-up
Dominic Ferrante – Devinci Dreamin’Shirt
Photography/Digital
Winner
Aaron Seeto – Still: The Killer
Runner-up
Susan Barnett – Reflecting History

UniBar website received over 8,000 hits between its launch in May through to December.
Acquisitive Art Award
Over 40,000 copies of TimeOut were printed and distributed.
Again this year, with the generous assistance from the
Creative Arts Department, the award was hung and
presented in one of the Creative Arts’ galleries, Blue Tac.
The winners went on to represent the University of
Wollongong at the National Tertiary Art Prize, which was
held at Newcastle’s Watt Space. The very high standard
of entrants was obvious, with Aaron Seeto winning in
the Photography/Digital category, and Emma Rutherford
commended in the 3D category.

UniCrew visited and distributed confectionery to over 312 lectures.
Over 22,000 UniMovies tickets were sold.
Over 67 bands performed gigs on campus.
Over 1,500 events with over 65,000 attendees were held in the Conference and Function Centre.
23 weddings were held in the Conference and Function Centre and University Hall.

The National Tertiary Art Prize is a very prestigious
competition, so congratulations must go to both of our
successful entrants.

165 students applied to join UniCrew.

Poetry Competition
Readings were held in the UniBar this year on
Wednesday 5 September. Not only did the
finalists have a chance to read, but other
entrants also performed their works.

The winners were:
1st
2nd
3rd

Carmel Gold
Vivienne Grant
Jason Gallagher

Statistics

Annual UniCentre Subscription Fee
UniCentre Life Members
Student Members
University Staff Members
UniCentre Staff

2001

2000

1999

$200.20
3,651
14,500

$200.20
3,539
13,067
1,552
267

$177
3,421
12,900
1,508
237

246

UNICENTRE AWARDS
Each year the UniCentre recognises the efforts of individual campus community members which have enhanced
the life of the campus community or, in the case of the Staff Award provided outstanding customer service.
2001 WINNERS
VOLUNTARY SERVICE A WARD
Jesse Mitchell in recognition of his contribution to the UniCentre as an active member of the UniCrew; in the
management of the Clubs and Societies website, including the creation of over 25 new club websites; in the
development of the UniBar website and currently in the training to UniShop staff in Dreamweaver.
STAFF AWARD
Angelo Gaudiosi for his caring attitude to customers and colleagues alike and his commitment to his work, along
with his honesty, integrity and reliability.

UNICENTRE AWARD
Wollongong UniCentre established the UniCentre Award during 1998.
Judged on merit and sponsored by Campus Cards, the award offers a
worthy student a monetary scholarship to assist in defraying study costs
whilst at the University of Wollongong.
This year’s winner was Christopher Portelli who is enrolled in a Bachelor
of Creative Arts degree majoring in Creative Writing, is interested in
writing novels for young children and has had articles published in both
the Illawarra Mercury and Tertangala newspapers.
UniCentre congratulates Christopher on being the recipient of the fourth
UniCentre Award and wishes him success in his studies.

Body Language
Out of the Water
Walk to the Planck Constant

UniCentre
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Unique design of UniBar patio emulates the
surrounding natural landscape

Vision
To be recognised as the leading campus
service provider and an integral part of the
University of Wollongong.

Mission
The Mission of the UniCentre is to complement
the academic activities of the University by
providing relevant products, services and
facilities to meet the diverse social and cultural
needs of the University population and to
develop a sense of community.
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UniCentre

organisational structure

BOARD

Administrative
Committee

Finance and Audit
Committee

Entertainment
Committee

Children’s Services
Committee

General Manager

ORGANISATION
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directors’ report
The directors present their report together with the financial statements of the Wollongong UniCentre Ltd (UniCentre)
for the year ended 31 December, 2001.
Directors: The directors of the company in office at the date of this report are:

Name & Qualifications

Experience

David Rome
BSc(Hons), MSc,
FAICD
Executive Chair
Non-Executive Director

Vice-Principal (Administration) of the University of Wollongong. Prior to
joining the University in 1996, David was General Manager, DAS Support
Services, a commercial business unit within the federal public sector. He
has also held positions with British Petroleum, the Department of Foreign
Affairs, Commonwealth Ombudsman, Department of National
Development and Energy and Murdoch University.

Rochelle Haley
Non-Executive
Director

A University of Wollongong Creative Arts/Law student, currently casually
employed by the NSW Department of School Education (Performing Arts
Unit) teaching debating and public speaking.

Bryce Fraser
RFD ED BA FAIM
FAICD (dip) MACS
Non-Executive Director

A Fellow of both the Australian Institute of Management and the Australian
Institute of Company Directors as well as being a member of the Australian
Computer Society. Group General Manager of the Australian Health
Management Group, which managers a number of health insurance
products, the largest of which is the Government Employees Health Fund.
The eighth largest fund in the country, the AHMG manages over 200,000
people. Bryce entered the private health fund industry in 1986 after eight
years in local government and a prior career in the steel industry as a
computer and management services professional.

Vanessa Badham
Non-Executive Director

Currently finishing her BCA/BA (Hons), has been heavily involved in student
and community organisations since 1993. The former President of the
National Union of Students NSW, she was the 1997 editor of Tertangala
and is the present Secretary of the South Coast Writers’ Council. A widelyperformed playwright as well as a committed social justice activist, she has
been fortunate to receive awards for her writing as well as being named a
Compaq Community Star of 2000 for her commitment to community work.

David Morgan
Williams
Non-Executive Director

The principal of a local private management consultancy firm. As well as
being a University Council nominee on the UniCentre Board of
Management, David serves on several other boards and committees. He is
Chairman of St Mary’s Star of the Sea College Limited, the Illawarra
Corporate Committee Australian Olympic Team Fund and Chairman of the
Salvation Army Red Shield Business Appeal. David is currently undertaking
his MBA at the University of Wollongong.

Steve Gower
BSc (Hons), PhD,
GAIP Senior
Research Fellow
Non-Executive Director

Steve is currently employed as a Senior Research Fellow within the School
of Electrical, Computer & Telecommunications Engineering. He obtained
both his BSC (Hons) in physics and his PhD in electrical engineering from
the University of Wollongong. Some of his research interests include
robotics, inidustrial automation and high temperature superconductivity.
Prior to working for the University, Steve worked for BHP Research and the
Australian Museum. He currently also sits on the Board of Directors of the
Wollongong Science Centre.
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Greg Smith
Non-Executive Director

Elected in 2001, Greg has been a resident of Campus East for 5 years, where
he is Senior Resident. Greg’s aims whilst on the UniCentre Board include the
improvement of services for staff and students by maintaining the variety of
food outlets and range of entertainment on campus.

Debbie Patterson
Non-Executive Director

Debbie’s Administration duties over the past eleven years at the UniCentre
have seen her work amongst numerous departments ranging from Food
Services to Finance and Facilities.
This has enabled Debbie to obtain ‘hands-on’ knowledge of the varying
issues many members of staff encounter throughout their working careers.
As the UniCentre staff representative, Debbie has focussed on opening up
the channels of communication, enabling staff to have an improved
understanding of policies and future plans.

Christine Hayward
BA B.Leg S(Hons) PG
Dip Legal Prac, LL. M
MAICD
Non-Executive Director

Director of Equal Opportunity, Freedom of Information and Privacy at the
University of Wollongong. Christine is admitted as solicitor and barrister.
She specialises in administrative and industrial law and has served on both
the Board and as an Executive Chair of the Illawarra AIDS Council, as a
Presiding member of the Sydney City Council Staff Disciplinary and Appeals
Committee and a member of the Refugee Review Tribunal. She was a
ministerial appointee to the NSW Women in Prison Task Force. She is a
member of the Law Society of NSW, Law Council of Australia and the
Australian Institute of Administrative Law.

Tracey Lee Kirk
Downey
B Ed Dip Teach EC
Non-Executive Director

Currently Children’s Services Coordinator at Wollongong City Council, Tracey
has seven years’ experience in its Community Development and Services
Division. During this period Tracey was seconded to NSW Department of
Community Services as an Early Childcare Adviser. A Quality Reviewer for
the National Childcare Services Accreditation System, Tracey was also a
Director on the board of Illawarra Children’s Services since 1997. Previously
a Convenor of the Illawarra branch of the National Association of Community
Based Children’s Services (NACBCS) for three years, between 1997 and 2000,
Tracey is currently the Convenor of the NSW branch of NACBCS. Tracey is
an active member of the local Government and Community Services
Association (LGCSA) in the children’s services division, and in November
1999 she hosted the State conference of the LGCSA children’s services
division.

Salama Salem
Non-Executive
Director

Sal is currently entering the fourth year of her double degree in B.Arts
(French)/B.Commerce (Marketing). For the past three years she has resided
at Weerona College. Sal is actively involved in various committee’s and
activities on campus and welcomes students to come and chat to her about
any issues or suggestions.

Chris Patton
MA
Executive Director
Company Secretary
General Manager

General Manager of the UniCentre for seven months. Prior to joining the
UniCentre in 2001, Chris held various roles with the University as (project)
manager for business process improvement, GST and systems
implementations, policy development and learning and development
functions. Prior to joining the University of Wollongong, Chris worked in
student affairs management and programme development for ten years in
3 different Canadian university systems and in university housing in particular.
He holds a Master’s degree in Organizational Development from the
University of Guelph, Canada.
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Resignations
The directors who resigned during the year were:
Name
Brad Kinghorn

Effective Resignation Date
5/6/2001

The directors who were replaced during the
year were:
Name
Don Beale
Leon Kane-Maguire
Simon Zulian

Effective Date
20/8/2001
20/8/2001
20/8/2001

Results

UniBar patio features a magnificent gum growing
through the decking
Dividends
Dividends are not payable by companies limited by
guarantee, such as the UniCentre.

Revenue
Profit from ordinary activities
before income tax expenses
Income tax expense relating to
ordinary activities
Net Profit
Retained profits at the
beginning of the year
Retained profits at the
end of the financial year

2001

2000

13,688,314

12,846,468

477,274

165,873

-

-

477,274

165,873

4,569,573

4,403,700

5,046,847

4,569,573

Significant Activities
The Wollongong UniCentre operates a wide range of
services and trading operations. These include:
•
food and beverage
•
children’s services
•
bookstore and retail
•
post office
•
student development, leadership and support services
•
leisure and recreation rooms
•
conferences and functions
•
entertainment and events
•
travel and financial services
•
medical/dental/optometrist services
• hairdresser
Significant Changes
There were no significant changes to the scope of operating
activities of the UniCentre during 2001. A range of service
initiatives are discussed in the Review of Operations (see
below).

Wollongong UniCentre Limited
2001 Income Dissection
Wollongong UniCentre Limited
2001 Income Dissection
Childcare
8%

Wollongong UniCentre Limited
2001 Expenditure Dissection

Grant Income
2%

Nowra
0%

Wollongong UniCentre Limited
2001 Expenditure Dissection

Members fees
18%

Vending Income
1%

Nowra
1%

Other Income
0%

Rent received
2%

Admin Wages
6%
Other Expenditure
Facilities
2%
5%

Office
1%

Services
0%

Entertainment
3%
Leases/Minor Equipment
2%
Accommodation office
0%

Lodge
0%

Interest received
0%

Lodge
0%

Childcare
9%

Interest
1%
Depreciation/Amortisation
4%

UniShop/Post Office
38%

Staff training
1%

Food
23%

UniShop/Post Office
42%
UniBar
4%
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Food

UniCentre

directors’ report

Directors’ Meetings
Board
Administrative
Meetings
Meetings
A

B

Mr D Rome

6

7

Ms V Badham

1

3

Mr D Beale

4

4

Mr B Fraser

4

7

Ms R Haley

4

7

A

B

2

3

2

3

Finance
and Audit
Meetings
A

B

1

1

4

Dr S Gower

3

3

1

2

Ms C Hayward

3

7

2

5

Mr B Kinghorn

1

4

Prof L Kane-Maguire

4

4

2

3

Ms T Kirk-Downey

5

7

Ms D Patterson

3

3

2

2

Prof J Patterson*

1

1

Ms S Salam

2

3

Mr G Smith

2

3

Mr D Williams

4

7

Mr S Zulian

4

4

3

3

Mr N Pennington

4

4

3

Mr C Patton

3

3

2

1

Entertainment
Meetings
A

B

1

1

4

4

3

6

Children’s
Services
Meetings
A

B

2

2

1

3

4

1

2

0

1

1

2

1

2

2
3

4

-

4
1

2

3

2

2

3

5

1

1

2

2

2

1

3

2

3

A –

Number of meetings attended

B –

Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year

*

Appointed representative of the Vice-Chancellor

–

Events Subsequent to Balance Date
There were no events subsequent to balance date.

Likely Developments
Nil

Review of Operations
Your UniCentre continued to meet its vision and mission
of being a leading campus provider and introducing new
services, facilities and products for its members in 2001.

UniBar opening (May)
Possibly one of the most anticipated, exciting and impactful
developments was the much awaited opening of the $2.7
million UniBar accompanied by a new UniBar website
designed and implemented by students (http://
unibar.uow.edu.au/). The UniBar opening in May was well
attended and inaugural entertainment featured Gerling,
Tracky Dax and Gel. The UniBar has since received
recognition for its architectural features, and its intentional
ability to blend aesthetically into the environment – to this
end, your UniBar won the 2001 Master Builders’
Association Excellence in Construction Award and the Best

New or Refurbished Facility by the Australian Campus
Union Managers’ Association (ACUMA).
2001 also saw the departure of our long-standing Bar
manager, Mr Don Beale who served with the UniCentre
for almost 20 years. Don presided over the launching of
the new bar but also in his time was instrumental in
bringing countless students endless hours of entertainment
including well-known acts such as Hoodoo Gurus,
silverchair, Tokyo Shock Boys, The Tea Party, Powderfinger,
The Whitlams, and Royal Crown Review. In 2001, students
and members were entertained by a diverse range of
performances including The Mavis’, Something for Kate,
Jimmy Little, Louisville Sluggers to name but a few.

Asian Food Outlet
A new food provider, a former employee of the UniCentre,
was located and contracted to, to provide the revitalised
Bamboo Fiction Asian food outlet within the recently
redeveloped food court. All reports indicate that the
service, quality and authenticity of the outlet are top notch
and popular with all patrons.
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Wollongong UniCentre Limited
Net Results
2001 Actual Vs 2000 Actual
600,000
500,000

Net Profit

400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
-100,000
-200,000

Food

UniBAr

Functions

UniShop/
Post Office

Children’s
Services

Shoalhaven

TRADING ACTIVITY

Children’s Services accreditation

Customer Service Index (CSI) project

Kids’ Uni North had the highest level of accreditation from
Australian National Accreditation Council re-confirmed.
Long day-care capacity has reached its highest participation
with intake increasing by 7.5%. A Reggio Emelia
philosophy has been implemented for early-child care
which sees children experiencing the daycare services with
finishes and touches that are entirely reminiscent of a
natural, “homey” environment as opposed to impersonal
institutional fittings and services.
Ask our children’s services staff for more information on
this terrific new programme that is building greater
confidence in our children and parents alike.

Concern for how students, staff and members experience
the services of the UniCentre, and in a bid to obtain much
more accurate information on the needs of our customers,
resulted in the development of Customer Service Indices
for UniShop, UniBar and all food outlets. This required
several focus groups to be facilitated, and 800 interviews
with customers to be completed so the organisation is
confident that in 2001, UniCentre has an exceptionally clear
idea as to what its members want out of UniCentre services.
Preliminary results have revealed specific areas for
improvement that will be addressed with management and
their staff teams for development in 2002, but also shows
where the UniCentre performs strongly.

Jimmy Buffet performs at the UniBar opening in
May

Students enjoyed many performances on the
Duckpond Lawn
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The CSI instrument is short and can be rapidly administered
now, and the next roll-out is anticipated in March, 2002 so
that the process of implementing improvements in
UniCentre services to its members can begin.

Dr Kerryn Phelps, President of the Australian Medical
Association, before moving on to the fun part of the
evening with entertainment provided by the ever-popular
swing dance band Disciples of Groove.

Student Leadership and Business Development
(SLBD) project

The highlight of the night was the presentation of a huge
anniversary cake sporting the University crest, presented
to the University in recognition of its 50-year milestone in
tertiary education.

This student skills development initiative was launched in
3rd quarter, 2001 after noting by the UniCentre Board of
Directors. With this programme, the UniCentre has
emphatically and actively repositioned its role on campus
not just as a commercial provider of retail services, but as a
partner in the holistic development and support of services
to students across learning, development and life skills.
The SLBD was constructed during 2001 on contract to a
consultancy, Cleverlink Ltd, and will be implemented in
session 1, 2002. The end result will be a series of leadership
workshops to be made available to students at large in
early session 1, 2002, but also a system that will match
interested students with “employment” opportunities in
local businesses; an experience perhaps not dissimilar from
an internship. The UniCentre / SLBD difference is that
students will not only get recognition for the training that
they undergo in preparing to participate in the SLBD, but
they will also join local businesses on short-term, meaningful
projects, or assignments, thus developing critical skills at
an early stage in their academic career, while simultaneously
making those all important business contacts prior to
graduation.

Mind, Body and Soul Week
This specialised theme week was aimed to give students
and staff access to practical resources and information
allowing them to develop, enhance and maintain their
mental, physical and spiritual health. The following free
events /sessions were held during the first Mind, Body …
Soul Week with the much appreciated assistance of URAC
staff: Making Healthy Choices workshop (hosted by Matt
O’Neill, leading health educator and speaker), Capoeria
dance workshops, Latin Dance classes, Naturopathy
workshops, Tai Chi classes, Energy Healing workshop and
Monsieur Camembert, performed world music on the
Duckpond Lawn. Relevant information was also made
available to students and staff on the following health
related subjects: Road Safety, Responsible Drinking, Surf
Lifesaving, Smoking Prevention and Safety on Campus.

Annual Dinner celebrating University’s 50 th
Anniversary October brought the annual UniCentre
dinner which, this year was moved to coincide with the
University’s 50th anniversary. As an integrated part of an
overall weekend of celebrating the University’s birthday,
the UniCentre hosted its traditional Annual Dinner which
was attended by no less than 287 guests from both the
campus and wider Illawarra community. The University Hall
was brilliantly decorated and guests were addressed by

Community Sponsorships and Donations
The UniCentre contributed over $6,000 this year to
support a range of campus and community groups, not
the least of which were The Red Cross, UOW Allsorts
Group, Willows Community Theatre and the University
Rugby League Club.

Awards Received
Initiatives of the UniCentre also received recognition by
the national industry body, (ACUMA), by being awarded:
Best [conference] Menu Presentation/Merchandise
Brochure; Runner Up for Best Newsheet for “TimeOUT”
Newsletter and Runner Up for Best Innovation, New Idea
or Use of Technology for “What’s On” email list.

Financial Trends
As the financial statements in this Annual Report will show,
members can be satisfied that their funds were spent
judiciously and efficiently. The end of year financial
statements show a surplus after capital (and before
depreciation) of just over $393,000 with $200,000 of that
being income received from the University to support the
development of the UniBar.
Members will notice that the UniCentre projected to lose
a budgeted $101,588 and this was offset in the final
analysis mainly due to greater than anticipated revenues
from fees, and some greater control realised over nontrading expenditures.
Financial highlights of the operations are the success of
the UniBar which has exceeded expectations due to its
popularity as a new venue with a healthy and reasonably
priced menu. Conference and Functions also had a
successful year trading at over $1 million turnover for the
first time while the UniShop and Post Office continue to
be financial pillars in supporting the ability of the
UniCentre to deliver non-trading services, through
contributing 90% of the surpluses generated.
With any degree of over-reliance on one source of income,
the UniCentre remains exposed where events jeapordise
the health of revenue to the UniShop and the Post Office
and this will be an area for attention in 2002, with
on-line sales capacity being developed to facilitate
members’ access to the UniShop products. Of greater
concern is the decline in profitability in public catering
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which suggests a gap in the offerings provided as aligned
with the needs of the members so this is being addressed,
in part, by reworking staff at the Head Chef level, and a
general reworking of certain outlets (eg Olive Rumba) so
that members will see a significantly altered product line
in 2002.

In sum, the success of the combined operations of the
UniCentre led to a campus service provider that continued
to meet the interests and needs of the vast majority of
students, staff and guests on campus, and continues to
secure sufficient revenues to re-invest in its members and
their interests.

Finally, the Shoalhaven operation continues to lag behind
budget, yet as a percentage of overall turnover, this loss
continues to be manageable especially in light of a change
in co-ordination of our Shoalhaven campus services in last
quarter, 2001. Consequently, the Shoalhaven campus will
experience an expanded range of services and products to
better meet member needs beginning February, 2002.

Executive Director
Wollongong UniCentre Ltd
http://unicentre.uow.edu.au

UniCentre Poetry Competition attracted a full
house in the UniBar
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Chris Patton, UniCentre General Manager and
Professor John Patterson, Pro Vice-Chancellor
(Operations) cut the cake at the Annual Dinner
celebrating the 50th Anniversary of the University
of Wollongong

UniCentre

unicentre staff
General Manager
Business and Operations Manager

Nigel Pennington, Chris Patton
Peter Bottele

PERSONNEL
Personnel Co-ordinator
Personnel Assistant

Kathy Fitzsimmons
Annette Cooper, Ann Eady

FINANCE
Finance Manager
Finance Administrative Assistants

GENERAL OFFICE
Administration Manager
Receptionists
Office Administrative Assistants
Promotions & Marketing Co-ordinators
Entertainment Co-ordinator

Joanne Sutherland
Rosanne Humble, Jenni Rosser, Isabel Sacco, Sue Docherty,
Petra Drenoyanis, Mellisa Gallacher, Natalia Mortensen,
Joy Willis

Solveig Dewhurst
Jan Miller, Judy Weston, Renée Franco, Connie Booker
Patricia Cooney
Fran Walder, Brad Madge
Patricia Cooney

CONFERENCE & FUNCTIONS
Conference & Functions Manager
Functions Co-ordinator
Conference & Functions Assistant/Acting
Functions Co-ordinator
Conference & Functions Supervisor
Functions Catering Trainee
Kitchen Attendant

Ciarn Armour, Renée Franco
Judith Booker, Val Tsalos, Glenn Winter
Sarah Todd, Khang Luu
Matt Reiher

FACILITIES
Facilities Manager
Facilities Co-ordinator
Facilities Administrative Assistant
Crew Chief
Maintenance
Attendant Cleaners
Cleaners
Housekeeper

Doug Heaton
Debbie Patterson
Maureen Favorito
Cec Ingram
Ken Kohler
Graham Grenfell, Brian Parker, Jenny Smith, Mark Dyer
Kay Clarke, Rada Kotevska, Nola Pados, Lila Naumovski
Shirley West

CATERING
Unit Supervisors

James Cook
Elena Di Stefano

Food Services Stock Controller
Food Services Administrative Assistant
Chef
Cook
Apprentice Chef
Catering Assistants
Kitchen Attendants

Michael Armour, Jason Gallacher, Angelo Gaudiosi, Martin
Carling, Karen Zaini, Maree Weekes, Sharon Twyford,
Cheryl Brooks
Peter Stapleton
Glennys Marsland, Ezzie Magrin
Erika HargSheppard, Insimo Soseforeaves
Carol Cusack
Scott Aikman, Krishana Davey, Rachel Murty
Megan Crowl, Michelle Lown
Lea Foye

UNIBAR/ENTERTAINMENT
Entertainment & Bar Manager
Activities Officer
Bar Supervisors

Don Beale
Adene Rigley
Wayne Brown, David Rosta
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UniCentre Senior Managers, Peter Bottele, Solveig
Dewhurst, James Cook, Carol Lymbery, Chris Patton,
Doug Heaton, Steve James, Joanne Sutherland.
(Missing: Don Beale)

UNISHOP
Retail Manager
Assistant Retail Manager
Bookshop Supervisor
Retail Supervisor
Head Cashier
Retail Assistants

Systems Officers
Academic Liaison Officer
Senior Storeperson
Bookshop Assistant

Steve James
Kevin Lothian
Anne Blythman
Julie Sands/Dolores Zammit
Michelle Woods
Robyn Oliveira, Linda Robins, Natalie Reynolds, Joanne
Robinson, Jo Fisher-Ward, Dolores Zammit, Iain Watt,
Vanessa Lockyer
Silvana Naumovski, David Wade
Jacquie Poole, Neil Webster
Peter Rattenbury
Paul Rybak, Denise Gracie

POST OFFICE
Assistant Manager Post Office
Postal Officers

Diane Choice
Cathy De Francesco, Rhondda D’Angelo, Tamie Walsh

CHILDREN’S SERVICES
Children’s Services Manager
Teaching Directors (Kids’ Uni North)
Teaching Director (Kids’ Uni South)
Administrative Assistants
Out of School Hours Co-ordinator
Teachers
Child Care Workers

Cook (Kids’ Uni North)
Cook (Kids’ Uni South)
Child Care Trainees

Carol Lymbery
Robyn Timlin
Taesha Duley-Smith, Kelly Cooper
Janelle Davis, Fiona Mills
Lyn Cruickshank
Maria Versloot, Kathy Patrick
Belinda Iliffe, Karen Flint, Clemintina Gana, Aruna Honovar,
Maree O’Leary, Sophia Kortes, Maxine Hurst, Sarah Brady,
Tracy Dunn, Angela Oberhardt, Janene Thuaux,
Belinda Wakeford, Adam Vose, Julie Bowmaker,
Kylie Mathie, Kellie Waters, Mark Kellett, Anita Sprajla
Julie Dunne
Wendy Howe
Melissa Labor, Lee Nixon, Chantel Hargreaves, Alicia Jongsma

Shoalhaven Campus

Debbie Lewandowski

Long Serving Staff Members
Peter Bottele
Kym Hodcroft
Ann Eady
Don Beale
Kathy Fitzsimmons
Jan Miller
Elena Di Stefano
Jenni Rosser
Angelo Gaudiosi
Peter Stapleton
Maree Weekes
Carol Bridgewater
Estelle Schultz
Judy Weston
Karen Zaini
Lea Foye
Wayne Brown
Annette Cooper
Carol Cusack
Carolyn Spalding
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28 years
24 years
22 years
19 years
19 years
19 years
18 years
18 years
17 years
17 years
16 years
16 years
16 years
16 years
16 years
16 years
14 years
14 years
14 years
14 years

Mellisa Gallacher
Sharon Twyford
Kay Clarke
Debbie Patterson
Cec Ingram
Jason Gallacher
Glennys Marsland
Kevin Lothiam
Rosanne Humble
Martin Carling
Patricia Moss
Stephen James
Julie Sands
Brian Parker
Julie Dunne
Maree O’Leary

13 years
13 years
12 years
12 years
12 years
11 years
11 years
11 years
11 years
11 years
10 years
10 years
10 years
10 years
10 years
10 years

A total of 530 years of dedicated service to the
members of the Wollongong UniCentre.

Jan Miller in the Enquiries
and Ticket Office

Peter Bottele, Business and
Operations Manager

UniCentre

general office

Solveig
Dewhurst,
Administration
Manager

A change in General Manager brought with it a change in focus. With the implementation of
the Balanced Score Card management model, the General Office refocused its activities to
become more project oriented. Whilst continuing with the development of the Board of
Directors database, which saw its successful completion toward the end of the year (with
many thanks to Brendan Lloyd), the operation also implemented the capacity for students to
elect to receive electronic communication from their service provider. For the first time, it will
mean that this Annual Report will no longer be mailed to each member. Rather, members will
receive an e-mail notification which will allow them to view or download the annual report
from an electronic source with a resultant signification cost saving to the UniCentre.

Several other IT initiatives were developed through the year
with new hardware now being obtained through the
University’s negotiated price list with Dell products. In line
with this initiative, a software register and acquisition policy
was developed to effect clarity and consistency in licencing
to meet auditing standards. An organisational and unitbased Standard Operating Environment was implemented
and a desktop management product reviewed and
recommended. These initiatives will all result in greater
ease of IT rollovers and greater cost efficiencies in desktop
deployments and disaster recovery.

Shoalhaven during early 2002, such as the Life Membership
process, Tax Advice service, Awards nominations and, of
course, the travel concessions process.

A further development was the investigation and soon-tobe implementation of an electronic calendaring
functionality for UniCentre. Separately stored on its own
Exchange server, the MS Outlook product will facilitate
meeting arrangements for the UniCentre’s management
team and their bodies of staff. It will also provide a more
efficient way for staff to manage their time and to track
and monitor their tasks.

With the departure of Don Beale, Trish Cooney was
promoted from the General Office staff to the
Entertainment Co-ordinator’s position and her position was
not replaced. However, long-serving part-time Web
developer, Brendan Lloyd, was secured on a limited term
contract as a Information Systems Analyst charged with
integrating and developing the UniCentre’s disparate
internet / intranet systems. The departure early in 2002 of
the Administration Manager, presents an interesting
challenge for the corporate office during the course of the
new year.

The year saw the migration of the University’s Travel
Concession policy to the UniCentre Enquiries and Tickets
office functionality. This service was further extended at
the end of the year with the University requesting that
UniCentre also manage the student bus concession process
on its behalf. Scheduled for implementation in early 2002,
this now provides a “one-stop shop” for new and
re-enrolling students to collect their Student Diary at the
same time as updating their travel concessions without the
necessity of attending two separate services.
In anticipation of implementing an E-election process during
the course of 2002, the UniCentre Election Regulations
were updated. Through the course of the year, several
ambiguities, inconsistencies and redundancies were noted
in these Regulations and the UniCentre Board of Directors
will now have the task of working through the revised
edition.
The Shoalhaven campus didn’t escape General Office
attention with the annual Board election process extended
to these members for the first time. Work was also
completed on rolling out various other services to the

The year also saw the initiation of an electronic records
management system, Canocentral. Several staffing
changes occurred through the year. Maternity leave for a
C&F Unit staff member saw General Office Receptionist,
Renée Franco, successful in securing the limited term
secondment. This move brought agency-staff, Connie
Booker to the General Office role on a limited term contract.

All General Office staff are to be commended for their
commitment and dedication through the year in adjusting
admirably to the changes: Trish Cooney, Renée Franco,
Jan Miller, Judy Weston and also to Brendan Lloyd and
Connie Booker.
Fran Walder, Marketing Co-ordinator deserves a special
mention for her achievements through the year –
particularly whilst undertaking tertiary studies at the same
time – the most significant of which was the successful
launching of the new UniBar. Critical to this was the
establishment of the UniBar Working Party, consisting of
student, SRC, UniCentre Board and staff collaboration to
develop the brand “UniBar, your bar!” The committee
assisted in developing a range of initiatives: market
research, poster design, Thursday Night Late Shuttle Bus,
theme nights including the UniBar opening Daemon Dance
Night, and the What’s On Email List launch and competition
which resulted in the collection of over 3,000 subscriptions
from campus students and staff.
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general office
The What’s On List was also awarded the Runner Up prize
at the ACUMA 2001 Conference for Best Innovation, New
Idea or Use of Technology. TimeOut, the UniCentre
Entertainment Newsletter was also awarded the Runner
Up prize for Best Newsheet, edited by Trish Cooney. The
UniBar website (http:unibar.uow.edu.au) was launched in
May to coincide with the opening of the new UniBar and
was developed collaboratively with UniCrew volunteers.
Jesse Mitchell was the primary architect of this project,
which has received recognition and praise from students,
staff and other campuses as a benchmark. Jesse was
awarded the UniCentre Voluntary Service Award 2001 for
his commitment to this project. The site is also a repository
for all photographs taken at UniCentre events allowing
students free access to download images and submit
content themselves. From May to December 2001, the
site received over 8,000 visits.

UniCrew mid-year party
The work of volunteers has been significant in 2001, and
Jenelle Donnelly must be congratulated for her contribution
to the Conferences and Functions Centre Brochure,
awarded Best Menu Presentation/ Merchandise Brochure
at ACUMA 2001 and her significant contribution to the
design of the 2002 Student Diary. A strong relationship
was also developed with the InterHalls Committee resulting
in the UniCentre hosting their annual InterHalls Ball and
regular feedback sessions relating to student participation
in UniCentre initiatives.

High praise and gratitude must be extended to the
wonderful dedication of UniCrew student volunteers.
There were seven teams including UniVoice, Photography,
Design, Marketing, Poster, Web and Halls of Residence.
More than 120 students attended Orientation sessions in
Understanding our members has been a priority for this
Autumn and Spring Sessions and 75 became active
UniCentre service, and the 2000 Customer Satisfaction
members. UniCrew participated in four photography
Survey was presented to the Board of Directors in February
workshops, four public speaking workshops, three photo
with key recommendations being implemented in 2001.
manipulation training sessions, two market research
A number of surveys were conducted including UniBar
interview techniques training sessions and five UniCrew
satisfaction, Food Outlet satisfaction, and the coordination
planning sessions. They were also involved in packing and
of the Customer Service Index Project resulting in over 800
distributing bags during Enrolment, O Week tent
interviews conducted over a three week period at the end
promotion and recruitment, Market Day stalls, market
of Spring Session.
research, food sampling, the University Community Day
and conducted over 600 interviews as part of the Customer
It has been a busy, and satisfying year for this office and
Service Index research project. Participants were rewarded
2002 presents even greater challenges. At the heart of
with a trip to Wonderland in December, which was a great
our success is the constant feedback and participation of
day for all! Appreciation must also be extended to Nestlé
UniCentre members, to which we extend our gratitude.
for signing on at short notice to sponsor the UniCrew
program and providing UniCrew t-shirts
and supply of Lifesavers, Soothers and
other confectionery to UniVoice lecture
Wollongong UniCentre HONORARY LIFE MEMBERS 2001
presenters. UniCentre looks forward to
strengthening this relationship in 2002.
•
Karen Zaini
•
Ian L Dunn
•
George Takacs
•
Susan Stevenson
•
Damien Cahill
•
Gerald Stuart Street
•
Sherlyn Pillay (Moynihan)
•
Dr Winnifred Mitchell AM
•
The Hon Dr Robert M Hope
•
Benjamin Meek
•
Jim McKee
•
Lorna Koetz
•
Georgina Skinner
•
Noel Diffy
•
Damien Considine
•
Therese (Tot) Brooks
• Wayne Brown
•
Fay Hulford
•
Julie Fredericks
•
Patricia Williams
•
Cheryl Brooks
•
Prof Ken McKinnon
•
Jesse Martin
•
Buck (Buchanan) Reed
Judy Weston and Connie Booker,
•
Angelo Gaudiosi
•
Don Beale
General Office Administrative
staff
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UniCentre

children’s services
At the 2001 Australian Early Childhood Conference
the delegates overwhelmingly stated that the
biggest problem in the sector today is “staff – staff –
staff”. UniCentre Children’s Services response to this
is to say “yes – yes - yes”, because the UniCentre
teams are totally professional and committed to the
highest quality care and education for children.

The issue of professional development has been high on
the agenda this year with training and development
focussed around many staff undertaking Early Childhood
Teaching Qualifications, Reggio Emilia Training, the
presentation of new Brain Research findings, a visit to Mia
Mia (a reggio centre at Macquarie University), existing
and new application training at RBA Computing in
Melbourne, Occupational Health
and Safety Training and several
employees attending the Australian
Early Childhood Conference and the
Children’s Week Dinner. Funds to
support some of this professional
development were raised by hosting
several training sessions for families
and other service providers in the
local area.

The major focus this year has been
the
development
of
the
environments to ensure the Centres
are resourced to implement the
UniCentre’s personalised version of
the Reggio Emilia philosophy of Early
Childhood Education and Care.
Work began with the renovation and
upgrading of the Indoor and
Outdoor environments of the
Four strategic teams were
Outside School Hours Centre and
developed to address issues ranging
Kids’ Uni North. Work also began
from room temperatures, a
on Kids Uni South. The Children’s Janelle Davis and Fiona Mills,
corporate wardrobe, professional
Services Team hope to present a Children’s Services staff
develop-ment and external shade.
more homelike and relaxed
These teams will soon present their recommendations to
environment to the children and their families. Another
management.
innovation has been the implementation of three age
groups in Kids’ Uni North and Kids’ Uni South plans to
Staffing levels also experienced major changes including
implement the three age groups in January 2002 . These
the employment of four trainees in two vacant positions.
improvements have seen major changes to the number of
This strategy provided the opportunity to assist several
staff, the qualifications of staff, the children’s daily routines
people enter the Children’s Services employment sector
and equipment purchases.
and receive excellent on and off the job training.
Children’s Services commitment to quality education and
care was rewarded with the highest level of Accreditation
Many parents questioned their role in Children’s Services
through the National Child Care Accreditation Council for
this year and at a meeting to discuss this issue several
Kids’ Uni North. It also successfully submitted for Special
changes were agreed upon, including the adoption of
Needs Supplementary Services Funding to help the teams
parent representatives for each playroom and a
commitment to redevelop the roles of parents. Sadly,
two of the stalwarts of Children’s Services parent
management team resigned after many years and all staff
and parents bid Ellen Manning and Julie Steele a fond
farewell. Their contribution of time and help over the years
has been greatly appreciated, thank you.

Outside play at Kid’s Uni North
at each Centre provide excellent care for many families
with children with additional needs and is proud to be their
provider of choice.

Fun in the sandpit
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facilities
Highlights
•
•
•
•

UniBar completion
Community Development Office
Parents’ Room
Food Services – Computer Server Installation

In addition, Facilities attendants set-up 1,550 rooms for
the Conference & Functions Unit during 2001 compared
to 1,041 in 2000.

Doug Heaton, Facilities Manager, Debbie Patterson,
Purchasing Officer, and Maureen Favorito,
Administrative Assistant.

The Facilities Unit provides a diverse range of services
including maintenance of food service equipment,
function set-up, cleaning, building and services
maintenance, information technology network and
is responsible for assets management, environmental
management and security.
The Facilities Unit provides services between 05:45
to 24:00 from Monday to Friday and on weekends
when required.

UniBar under construction
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A total of 809 repair requests (387 for Buildings & grounds
and 422 Internal) were carried out during 2001 compared
to 995 during 2000 and purchase orders raised totalled
1,997 during the year compared to 1,801 in 2000.
The Facilities Unit staff enjoyed providing service to the
staff and students of the UniCentre, and thanks must go
to Debbie Patterson (Facilities Co-ordinator); Maureen
Favorito (Administration Assistant); three full time, four
part-time and three casual Attendant Cleaners.
Ken Kohler (Maintenance) and Cec Ingram (Crew Chief)
retired in July 2001.
In the forthcoming year the Facilities Unit looks forward to
implementing a new Purchasing System which is scheduled
for completion in March 2002, instigating and implement
of a new OH&S Risk Management system and the
implementation of an Assets/Maintenance Management
program.

UniCentre

conference & functions unit

A vote of thanks to Fran Walder, UniCentre’s Marketing &
Promotions Co-ordinator, and her team for the
development and production of this brochure which won
the award for Best Menu Presentation Brochure of any
Australian University Union at the recent ACUMA
Conference held in Launceston, Tasmania.
Thanking unit members always brings opportunities to
reflect on commitments made by individuals. Elena Di
Stefano, Conference & Functions Co-ordinator returned
from 12 months Maternity Leave to regain her role as the
primary person responsible for all day to day operational
activities of the unit.

James Cook, Conference and
Functions Manager

What a year it was! Starting with the Yellow Pages Tourism
Awards for Excellence, followed by the Young Achievement
of Australia Awards dinner and finishing with the 2001
Illawarra Business Awards gala dinner, all held at the
“University of the Year” University of Wollongong in 2001.
The strength and commitment shown by all members of
the Conference & Functions unit continued to meet the
needs of our clients as they returned back for more during
the course of the year.
University Hall continued its rein as one of the premier
venues of the Illawarra across many sections of the regional
community by hosting significant events that ranged from
a number of private school year 12 formals, corporate,
company, and birthday celebrations, through to the NSW
Police Service Annual Fundraising Ball.

Through her diligence and patience Elena ensured
that the Unit’s expenditure was kept to a minimum
which is clearly demonstrated by the wages to
turnover figure being 5% points under the budgeted
figure of 47%.
Acknowledgement also to Glenn Winter, on-the-floor
Supervisor for his tireless role serving the needs of our
clients. This is evidenced through results from our ongoing
market survey showing a 95.4% response of Good/
Excellent to the question rating the quality of service
delivered by floor staff.
A thank you also to Conference & Function Chef Michael
Armour and his team in the kitchen who continued to
provide quality foods and presentations across many of
the 1,550 or so function events staged here at the
University of Wollongong throughout the year.
Finally thank you to all those behind the scenes who assist
the Conference & Functions Unit provide the diverse range
of activities undertaken each year.

Focusing attention on Internal Clients was also a priority
for the Conference & Functions Unit for this year which
saw increases of 38% achieved over 2000 results and a
Good/Excellent rating of 90% for services provided by unit
Hospitality Floor Staff.
The Unit’s position was strongly enhanced with the
introduction and launch, in late October, of the 2002
Conference & Functions banquet kit. Part of the overall
Solutions marketing programme, the new banquet kit
forms the basis of ongoing focused marketing materials
further branding the Conference & Functions Centre as a
professional alternative.
University Hall wedding set up
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unishop
Gross turnover for the year topped the $5million mark
for the first time in the UniShop’s ten year history. At
$5,262,000 this is 9% above last year’s $4,799,000.
However, when adjusted for commission-only revenue
on course notes and instant lotteries, net turnover is
$4,960,000. This is 6% above last year’s figure. It also
returned $416,000 in discounts to members.
Cost of Goods (Sales) at 72.55% was 2% above budget,
due to a large writedown of old stock in the September
Sale. However, with wages kept below budget
to balance additional expenses for the year, the
Nett Result came in on target at $436,500 (to a
budget of $433,900).
UniShop collected $444,000 in GST and gave out
$206,000 in ETSS payments. It carried out
360,000 transactions on 678,000 items at an
average of $14.50 per transaction and $7.75 per
item.

Sales of University badged clothing rose by 18% and 12%
in volume to see 5,500 articles sold. This result was a
particular success story for the UniShop and the full
catalogue of Clothing and Memorabilia will be available
on the UniShop website from the beginning of 2002.
Photo processing and film reached $145,000 and over
16,000 items. Sales of Consumables (Disks, batteries, etc.)
amounted to $50,000.
Sales to external campuses totalled $175,000
with $100,000 worth of texts sent to Dubai,
$40,000 sold to Sydney Business School and
$35,000 to Shoalhaven campus. TAFE students
comprised 80% of sales at Shoalhaven campus.
The University Library was also supplied with
$52,000 worth of textbooks and Academic
Liaison Officer, Jacquie Poole, co-ordinated a
new SLA for textbook supply with the Business
School.

The shop was audited on its operation of the
At $2,718,000, textbook sales represent 55% of
ETSS (Educational Textbook Subsidy Scheme)
turnover. This figure is 15% above last year’s
result. However, the average price per textbook Steve James, Retail and passed all the financial and record keeping
Manager
requirements. Thanks are due to Jacquie Poole,
has risen 10%, from $48.70 to $54.30,
Silvana Naumovski and Michelle Woods for their diligence
representing a real growth of 5%. The hard work of
in achieving this excellent result.
processing 65,000 textbooks by back office staff has paid
off with the sale of 50,000 textbooks to students in 2001.
2001 saw a major hardware upgrade for the shop. First
Departmental course notes’ sales increased 10% to
was with the leasing of a current generation IBM RISC 6000
$365,000 but with the quantity static at 22,000 items.
Processor to run the CABS system and secondly, the
replacement of our 3 year old IBM PCS with DELL
The general reading section of the bookshop, has begun to
workstations to meet the UniCentre’s and the University’s
turnaround the slump of last year, with a 5% increase in
new Standard Operating Environment. Improvements were
sales to $335,000. Sales of non-fiction rose 5% to $220,000
also made to the front-of-house operations, including new
and children’s books 14% to $48,000 thanks to the expertise
cash handling procedures, integration and rostering of the
of book buyer Anne Blythman. Anne also organised many
UniCentre enquiries counter with our Customer Service
Bookshop events including book signings with Margaret
counter, and the purchase and installation of Integrated
Atwood, Mare Carter, Ashley Hay & Tim Bowden. Book
EFTPOS for greater flexibility and reliability.
launches included campus authors Alan Wearne, Gerry
Turcotte, Ray Markey, Rob Hood, Deslea Konza, Brin Grenyer
A survey of customer awareness of our website
and a combined effort from Pauline Harris, Jan Turbill, Phil
“unishop.uow.edu.au” and on-line ordering facilities
Fitzsimmons and Barbara McKenzie from the Faculty of
revealed a 25% usage, predominantly for textbook orders.
Education.
A major target for the coming year is to boost this rate
considerably to counter the decline in “in-store” traffic.
Newsagency staff Julie Sands, Natalie Reynolds, Vanessa
Improvements to come include a direct link to student
Lockyer and Dolores Zammitt worked hard to produce a
enrolments (SOLS) facilitating the creation of a Customised
22% increase this year, from $340,000 to $430,000 and
Text List for each student
reached a landmark $150,000 in mobile phone and phone
card sales.
August saw the introduction of a pre-owned textbook
“Buyback” scheme. Although slow to catch on this year,
Despite heavy competition, the Stationery section managed
this service gives students the opportunity to cash-out their
by Kevin Lothian and Iain Watt held onto sales of $250,000
old texts at the end of, and prior to, session and makes
in line with 1999 and 2000. Participation in the Campus
limited quantities of cheaper second hand books available
Union Buying Co-op has assisted in retaining competitive
to members alongside new copies.
pricing and margins.
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UniCentre
unishop

A new gift product and consumer electronics range was
introduced specifically for students setting up “home” for
the first time, and will be expanded in the coming year to
include exciting homeware essentials. We also began
stocking a large range of accessories and aids for nursing
students.

2002 will see further I.T. development with the installation
of new system software, BookNet. This windows version
of CABS, our existing database, will bring greater flexibility
and customisation, improved reporting and web posting
and thereby improve our service levels both internal and
external.

The closure of the University I.T.Shop as a retail outlet,
will provide opportunity for UniShop in 2002 to expand
its range of I.T consumables, peripherals and software.
We are looking forward to providing service for the whole
campus community and to grow in-store and on-line
business.

The new year will also bring a strong focus on improving
customer service in general, and marketing our new
product, on-line facilities, and strength of inventory to both
the campus and the wider community.

UniShop Staff
Back Row: Miriam Sharrad, Steve James, Kevin Lothian, Iain Watt, David Wade, and Peter Rattenbury
Centre Row: Jacquie Poole, Anne Blythman, Vanessa Lockyer, Michelle Woods, Jan Miller, Robyn Oliveira,
Denise Gracie, and Silvana Naumovski
Front Row: Jo Robinson, Natalie Reynolds, and Dolores Zammit

Post Office
The year proved to be excellent for UniCentre Post Office
trading, returning a record profit and more than doubling
the budget forecast. This was achieved by not only
increasing sales, but also a significant decrease in labour
costs brought about by more efficient staff rostering.

Post Office staff, Cathy De Francesco,
Tamie Walsh and Diane Choice
Strong performers were telephone products, bill payment
commissions from Australia Post, souvenirs and gift lines,
as well as greeting cards. All these products and services
continue to show growth, indicating that 2002 will again
meet budgetary indicators.
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finance & personnel
Agency to form part of their educational material
forwarded to employers. Personnel will keep its energy
focussed on women’s issues into the next year by
continuing to liaise with the women who represent around
70% of UniCentre’s employees.

Joanne Sutherland,
Finance Manager

Finance
The year proved to be busy for the Finance Office once
again. The integration of data with the UniShop, Food
Services and the Conferences and Functions system was
completed successfully. The transition of payment of our
creditors to Electronic Funds Transfer continues to be
processed.
The initial planning phase also commenced for transfer to
the University’s payroll system Concept. Completion is
programmed for April 2002. This will involve many
challenges and benefits for all UniCentre as staff will be
trained in the use of (HR Self Service) Web Kiosk.
The forthcoming year will hold new challenges including
the development of the Central Business System, Finance
One. January 2002 will see the commencement of the
purchasing implementation and February should see the
completion of Creditors’ payment to Electronic Funds
Transfer.
Thanks must be extended to Finance staff for their ongoing
co-operation and effort which culminated in a successful
year.

Personnel
Constant change again proved a challenge in the Personnel
Unit during 2001. In the first half of the year the focus
was on responding to the staff survey by updating policies,
increasing the flow of Personnel information and
specialised supervisory training. With the advent of a new
General Manager in July the focus shifted to assimilating
the new manager and, taking advantage of this period of
review, Personnel was able to improve many of its internal
business processes.
The UniCentre’s reputation as an innovative employer was
upheld once again by the Equal Employment for Women
in the Workplace Agency. The UniCentre was commended
for its “flexible and proactive strategies” addressing pay
inequity issues for women and updating policies and
procedures around issues relating to harassment and
bullying. The advancements will be used by the EOWA
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Personnel are providing UniCentre’s Unit Managers with
more information than ever before on IR and HR issues
through including them in policy and procedure
development, specific inservice sessions and educational
flyers. As a priority, Personnel has been improving internal
processes dealing with preventative OH&S measures,
hazard reporting, injury management and rehabilitation.
Once again Personnel’s focus on prevention through the
year realised lower workplace incidents than the norm just
a few years ago. Continuity to reduce incidents will be
maintained through proactive steps such as thorough
induction and training processes, redesigning work areas
and the purchase of new specialised equipment.
The General Manager introduced the ‘Balanced Score Card’
strategic planning tool throughout the organisation in
August. Personnel have been involved in implementing a
further step of developing a Career Development System
for all staff with the General Manager. These tools are
assisting UniCentre in identifying key training needs
throughout the organisation, the benefits of which should
be seen more clearly in training outcomes for 2002 and
2003.
Projects that are currently underway include transferring
the in-house payroll to the Concept system to achieve
greater reporting functions and individual access to payroll
information through Web Kiosk. Personnel are particularly
involved in the HR Information System aspect of the project.
UniCentre’s web page now has a section for staff that
includes up-to-date Personnel Policies and forms. Our new
Employee Manual which was launched in April is another
source of information that will be available on-line as
Personnel continues to expand this website into 2002.
Implementation of a new industrial award and enterprise
agreement, as well as strengthening organisational
procedures infrastructure will be Personnel’s focus of
achievement for the forthcoming year.

Finance staff, Joanne Sutherland, Petra Drenoyanis,
Isabel Sacco, Sue Docherty, Mellisa Gallacher, Jenni
Rosser, Rosanne Humble

UniCentre

food services

UniCentre Food Services continued to provide an expansion of
service and diverse range of food styles in varying outlets
throughout the year, which was supplemented by specialised
private food operators. The main feature of the year was of course
the viability of the operation generating a surplus of $112,774
(including vending) from a turnover of $2,300,000 representing
only a 2.5% variation from the budget target. Again a leading
contributor to the year-end surplus was the $75,000 from the
continual growth in Keira Buffet, which benefits from Chef Angelo
Gaudiosi’s focus on quality service and product.
Olive Rumba staff, Anne Anderson and
Food Services supports a fairly static campus market and with Maria Gaudiosi
both on-campus and external competition, realized only a 3.8%
increase in sales over the year 2000, again with only 26 session weeks of full trading, managing costs and
providing continuity of service over the year is an ongoing challenge.
During the forthcoming year, UniCentre will be implementing menu innovation and a new concept at Olive
Rumba along with a revised price structure to achieve a modest return on sales.

Vending continues to be an important contributor to
UniCentre income with a nett return of $94,000 for the
year in snacks, coffee, juices and carbonated drinks.
UniCentre will expand these services in 2002 particularly
to the Western end of campus.
UniCentre’s tenants Food ReThought in the McKinnon
Building and the Coffee Cart in the northern end of
campus had successful years leading them to take up
options to extend their leases. UniCentre embarked on a
further venture with operator, Asian Bamboo Fiction, in
the Food Court in February 2001. Asian Bamboo Fiction
has been very popular and successful providing authentic
Asian foods, well liked by overseas and domestic students
alike. This outlet is also extending its lease for the upcoming
year. Asian Bamboo Fiction has provided extended hours
in the afternoons in the Food Court and most importantly,
trades through the recess periods providing the service
for 47 weeks of the year.

The major disappointment for 2001 was the pizza
operation in Olive Rumba where sales fell from $139,271
in 2000 to $89,032 meaning a substantial loss of $25,818
thereby making the outlet no longer viable. This has led
UniCentre to restructure and redesign the outlet for 2002
along a Mediterranean theme of quality hot foods,
including pastas and pizzas, pannini, Italian cakes and
quality espresso coffee. In addition, extended hours to an
early opening of 8.00am will be implemented.
UniCentre Food Services, through its staff and supervisors,
are anticipating more diverse and innovative foods to
compliment its most up-to-date facilities, and further
continual extension of the hours of service whilst
maintaining a high quality service in 2002.

Key achievements in the Food and Beverage operations
were the completion of the integrated Point of Sales
System and menu costing system for all outlets, providing
better controls on costs and prices. The UniCentre also
improved its food safety through staff training, the
introduction of a food safety committee and new food
safety procedures to meet the new H.A.C.C.P. legislation.
The year was disrupted when the old UniBar was removed
in September and its successor the new $3.3m UniBar,
opening on May 8, providing a new and better food
service. The renovation of the UniBar meant that there
was no Bar Food trading for the first four months of the
year. Bar Food, with its an expanded menu, was extremely
successful increasing sales over 50% to $224,707 for the
year compared to $148,530 for the previous full year in
2000.

Engine staff member, Vicki Lee
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accommodation office &
job shop
Inez Barrett, Tim Smith and Dan Purvis all commenced their
employment at the beginning of 2001 and the team
continued to provide a much-needed service assisting
students and staff at the University seeking accommodation
and casual employment. The service provided by the
Accommodation Office and Job Shop maintained its
excellent reputation throughout the University community
for delivering advice and information regarding
accommodation and casual employment in a friendly and
professional manner.
This office seeks to maximise the use of email in
communicating with students and staff, and, mid year the
Accommodation and Job Shop used email to remind staff
of the services offered which resulted in an increase of
staff offering rental and share accommodation. There is
also a notable increase in the use of our services for staff
seeking accommodation. A list of local real estates web
addresses was compiled, which is very useful in assisting
both international and domestic students/staff with
familiarization of the area and seeking accommodation
before arriving in Wollongong. This aids students and staff
in researching costs, conditions and styles of
accommodation before arriving, and also affords the
opportunity of establishing relationships with property
managers. These combined aspects have allowed for a
more relaxed introduction to studying at Wollongong.
Support from businesses and schools in the Wollongong
area increased through the year due to a number of
initiatives undertaken to increase the profile of the office
and the services provided. A number of mailouts were
conducted to a wider variety of businesses, and also to
primary and high schools to increase the number of jobs
available for students. A variety of positions were
advertised, ranging from tutoring, translating, web site
management to driving instruction, security work and sales
positions.
The recently appointed General Manager, Chris Patton,
took a particular interest in the Accommodation and Job
Shop, particularly with the efficient operation of the services
provided. This focus called for close monitoring of the daily
activities so as to find ways to improve the facilities.
Particularly, the property and employment database system
installed early this year continues to be modified and
improved upon.
The UniCentre is now linked with TAFE, working in
conjunction to provide students the opportunity to
complete their Responsible Service of Alcohol and
Responsible Conduct of Gambling Certificates. Specifically,
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courses were run at several times through the year in the
UniCentre functions rooms and were offered at a
discounted price for UOW students.
The Accommodation Office and Job Shop is open four days
a week throughout the University session and breaks with
opening hours extended to accommodate the busier
months of January, February, March and June.
Additional services provided by the Accommodation Office
and Job Shop, fulfilling its role as a student service, include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a courtesy telephone for students to make calls
regarding accommodation and casual employment.
information regarding temporary accommodation in
the Illawarra.
information regarding on-campus accommodation.
information regarding students’ rights and
responsibilities as tenants.
bus/train timetables, a ‘Transport and Car Pooling
Information Board.’
maps of the local area.
help with telephone and electricity connection.

The Accommodation and Jobshop service is planning to
go online in 2002 and to be transitioned to operating under
the Halls of Residence! A number of students and staff
have commented that contact with the office via email
has been invaluable, and an increasing number of people
have asked if they could access the notice board lists on
the internet. In reply to these consumer requests, planning
is now underway to put accommodation and job lists on
the web, thereby increasing efficiency and accessibility to
all.
Annual Figures
Private Accommodation Listings given out:
Share accommodation advertisements received:
Rental accommodation advertisements received:
(Listings are also advertised and updated each
week from 22 local Real Estate Agents)
Job Shop advertisements/positions:
Individual positions available:

7,841
1,078
698

210
402

The Accommodation Office and Job Shop had a very
productive and enjoyable 2001 and is looking forward to
meeting with students, staff and all other people who come
to use the service in 2002. Initiatives planned for next year
include further updating the database to produce more
electronic listings and reports.

UniCentre

clubs & societies

Club activities began the year during Orientation Week with the opportunity to
entice new enrolling students to join by holding stalls and activities on the Duck
Pond Lawn. The Clubs Day welcomes new students to the University in an exciting
atmosphere with over 1,500 new students experiencing the energy of the UOW
clubs. The ‘Duck Pond Dash’, held annually during O week, is organised by ECU and
is a major attraction of the Clubs Day.

Adene Rigley, Clubs
and Societies/
Activities Co-ordinator

Clubs and Societies increased their involvement in on-campus events, as well as in
the local community. The UniCentre Garden Party provides a chance for the Juggling
Club to perform with the First Aid Society assisting on the night. Other clubs holding
activities on campus included the Medieval Society, with a display of medieval
fighting, and The Sri Chinmoy Meditation Society running free meditation classes,
with the local community, students and staff all invited to attend and taking part in
the workshops.

International Night proved to be more popular this year in
the new UniBar. Held in May with international student
groups participating to make the night a success, this year,
the Indian students particularly enjoyed the Bangra music.
Dancing, singing and performances by the many different
groups proved popular with not only international students,
but also with plenty of domestic students joining in the
fun.
International student clubs celebrated their national and
significant days with events both on and off campus. Some
of more active international student clubs this year included
Indian, Thai, Singapore, Japanese, Chinese, Indonesian,
Pakistan and a new Diaspora (combined cultures) society.

The UniCentre expanded its ties with the University
throughout 2001. The University of Wollongong held a
Community Festival Day in August to celebrate the
University’s 50th Anniversary. The UniCentre was heavily
involved in assisting with the day, with UniCrew volunteers
helping out, and the Medieval Society performing on the
day. The UniCentre Annual Dinner was held on the Saturday
prior, with the University community supporting the event.
Wollongong UniCentre, including its clubs, will increase
support and involvement in the University community
through 2002.

The Clubs Space again saw a high utilization rate this year
for club meetings and small events, with the area
undergoing a makeover to increase its appeal to clubs.
There are now two club computers, with an increase in
the number of web pages made by clubs. A special thanks
to Jesse Mitchell, who assisted clubs with web pages on a
voluntary basis.
The University of Wollongong was well represented in a
number of areas by student clubs. The Medieval Society
hosted the Australian Intervarsity Medieval War Games.
The Guild competed against other Universities and hosted
a games competition in Wollongong.

UniCrew volunteers assist with the University
Community Festival

The religious clubs continued to be active throughout the
year with the Christian group (ECU) having guest speakers
during session times. The largest club on campus, the
Muslim Students Association, was also very active with
seminars and speakers throughout the year.
Social events are still very popular with most student clubs.
International student clubs enjoyed numerous dance parties
during the year. End of year dinners, parties, dances and
farewells occurred during the last months of the year.
The University of Wollongong Medieval Society
demonstrate their skills and costumes at the
Community Festival
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entertainment
With the new UniBar still under construction for the
commencement of session one, the first programmed event
for the year was held in the University Hall. The UniCentre’s
first 17 plus Welcome Night to first years was a great
success. An international DJ duo from the UK,
Poundsystem and the campus’ very own local dance band,
Infusion’s DJ’s had the Uni Hall in a dance frenzy. First year
students, who were not 18 at the start of session, were
welcomed to the event. Those students able to present ID
to prove they were over 18 were given a wrist band to
purchase alcohol. This event will continue in the future to
enable first year students who are under 18 to enjoy the
wonderful performance facilities at Wollongong Uni.
Cowgirls at the Garden Party
Other events in the Hall prior to the much anticipated
opening of the new UniBar were the Annual Garden Party
which, in usual fashion, sold out with all the usual
attractions that make the Garden Party a much talked about
event.

who would win this year’s coveted first place on the first
Thursday night of session 2. Gravitron took it out for the
second year in a row.

Without the UniBar, live bands like Magic Dirt, 78 SAAB
and local band Gravitron performed in the Uni Hall and
the legendary Retro/Rush graced the stage after Magic Dirt
finished their set. The 2002 Garden Party will obviously
be one to remember with the new UniBar in operation.

The student-oriented annual UniCentre Art Awards, Poetry
Competition and DJ Comp all proved highly successful.
The poetry winners had readings in the UniBar and were
presented with their prizes by the General Manager, Chris
Patton. The ‘Open Mike’ completed a well received
presentation of poetry works to an excellent crowd of
around 100 patrons.

Something for Kate was another performance in the Uni
Hall that attracted an excellent crowd of students and
guests. So too did Motor Ace. Lunchtime entertainment
on the Duckpond and McKinnon Lawns were also well
received by students and staff. So too were the African
cultural drumming band, Tambacounda, and the exquisite
tones of accapella group Manuhiri, and let’s not forget
the biggest lunchtime crowd the DuckPond Lawn has ever
hosted in 20 years with Pre Shrunk rocking the feathers of
the ducks swimming in the pond.

The new UniBar hosted the now annual International
Students Night, with 10 different Clubs presenting various
aspects of their diverse culture to entertain a crowd of
international and local students of around 500. The ever
popular Market Days on and around the DuckPond Lawn
were once again a favourite with overseas students picking
up bargains, or organising stalls to supplement their income
and also adding cultural diversity to the campus community.

The McKinnon Lawn also featured the wonderful
performances of Calypso Steelpans and Caribbean Soul,
the solo acoustic performance of Bernard Carney from
Western Australia and the fantastic appearance by the
gypsy band Monsieur Camembert.

A number of cultural events featured throughout 2001
with lunchtime performances around campus and in the
UniBar.

A number of other special activities featured throughout
the year 2001 with the very special performance by Jimmy
Little at the opening of the New UniBar. Also special for
the 2,500 students and guests who witnessed the first
Thursday night band was the performance by Gerling and
Tracky Dax on the new UniBar stage.
The ever popular campus band comp was again a big hit
with students and staff with over 30 bands vying for the
chance to represent Wollongong Uni at the Western Sydney
Uni State Final. The 2001 band comp attracted over threeto-four hundred punters on Wednesday nights with 800
students and friends of the bands in attendance to see
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African Dance Band Tabacounda teach students
the moves on the Duckpond Lawn

UniCentre

entertainment

Dagomba (Karifi African Drummers from West Africa)
performed on the DuckPond. There were acoustic solo
performances from
Jodi Phyllis (ex Falling Joys), Rory Ellis and David Hyams
(WA) and Burach (Scotland), in Australia for the Illawarra
Folk Festival.
Cultural Diversity was also a prominent factor in presenting
performers in the new UniBar on Wednesday nights. The
Acoustic Expression sessions were once again popular with
students and staff. Gracing the UniBar stage was (to name
a few): Mick Moriarty (The Gadflys) and friends, Louis Tillet
on his farewell tour of Australia. A new initiative, Friday
Chill afternoon, saw excellent performances by local blues
exponents Richard Steele (Who’s Muddy Shoes), Jeremy
Edwards (Hydro) to name but a few. With this initiative,
Friday afternoons saw the UniBar exceed all expectations
in friendly vibes and exceptional bar sales.
Thursday nights in the new UniBar also exceeded all
expectations in attendances from students and the local
community. With bar sales doubling the previous sales of

Happy punters in the University Hall

the old bar. The added space and open plan of the new
UniBar also doubled student attendances.
How could anyone forget the legendary gangster night
with the Louisville Sluggers performing to a full capacity
student and staff crowd in the UniBar. Similarly with the
Demon Dance Night event on the opening night featuring
Gerling and Tracky Dax attracting 2,500 punters.
International performers who also graced the UniBar stage
were: The Last Days of April (Sweden), The Zoobombs
(Japan) and Nebula (USA), complementing the best
alternative bands from Australia, such as: Friendly,
Superheist, Sick Puppies, Tumbleweed, Stella 1-11,
Skunkhour and Palladium.
Gratitude must be extended to the people behind the
scenes that make the entertainment unit a student and
staff friendly environment – Adene Rigley, Trish Cooney
and Fran Walder, plus the ever working UniCrew and the
UniBar crew of Sharon Twyford, Wayne Brown, Dave Rosta
and the student bar staff past and present.

Band Comp hornblowers Band Comp entrants
perform on the UniBar stage
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unibar
With an end of an era, another begins. The campus
farewelled the old UniBar in September 2000 and the
construction of the new $3.3m UniBar started to evolve.
So too did the heavens open up, with a month of continued
rain, which saw the delay of several weeks in opening the
new UniBar.
An air of anticipation awaited the new UniBar Opening on
14 May, Week 7 of Session One. Although the wait was
well worth it, especially when 2,500 students, staff and
guests celebrated the beginning of a new era, which is
now the soon-to-become legendary “UniBar–your bar!”.
One of the many highlights for the year would have to be
the official opening of the new UniBar, with politicians
(Colin Markham), University executives (Vice Chancellor
Gerard Sutton) and other dignitaries in attendance along
with special guest performer Jimmy Little. The new UniBar
came of age and let’s not forget its own University Building
number 12, now a separate stand alone building on the
campus directory map.
Congratulations must be extended to Nigel Pennington
(presently in the USA) and the Northern Wing Development
Project Committee for the end result that will no doubt
bring students and staff together to formulate friendships
and memories they will carry with them long after they
have left the beautiful surrounds of the University of
Wollongong and that of UniBar, your bar.

The success of the UniBar is mainly due to the dedicated,
hard working and friendly bar staff – Sharon Twyford,
Wayne Brown, Dave Roster and Megan Crowl and the
many student casual food and beverage staff. With the
success of the new UniBar and with sales, especially in the
food area, almost doubling that of the decaying old bar,
the future looks bright (keep your sunnies on!) for the
challenges that lay ahead for the crew of the UniBar.
After 20 years service in three incarnations of the UniBar,
the year saw the resignation of Don Beale, who was
farewelled in the UniBar with many friends and colleagues
present. The UniBar now enters a new era and welcomes
the new Entertainment Co-ordinator, Trish Cooney to a
bright and challenging new year.

Lunchtime at the UniBar

The UniBar stage presented international, Australian and local performers.
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Financial
ABN 28 915 832 337
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In the opinion of the directors of Wollongong UniCentre Limited ("the Company"):
1.

2.

the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 3 to 22, are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:
(a)

giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2001
and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for
the year ended on that date; and

(b)

complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

Dated at Wollongong this

20th

day of

March

, 2002.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

D Rome
Executive Chair

C Patton
Director and General Manager

WOLLONGONG UNICENTRE LIMITED
ABN 28 915 832 337
CERTIFICATE UNDER SECTION 41C(1C) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AND AUDIT ACT,
1983, For the Year Ended 31 December 2001
Pursuant to the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act, 1983, we declare that in our opinion:

1.

The accompanying financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2001 and transactions for the period then ended.

2.

The statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Public Finance and
Audit Act, 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulations
Regulations 2000, Urgent Issues Group
Consensus Views and applicable accounting standards.

Further, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the
financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
Dated at Wollongong this

20th

day of

March

, 2002.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

D Rome
Executive Chair

C Patton
Director and General Manager

3

WOLLONGONG UNICENTRE LIMITED
ABN 28 915 832 337

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

Note

Revenue from ordinary activities
Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from rendering of services
Other revenues
Total revenue
Expenses from ordinary activities
Cost of Good Sold
Operating Expenses
Administration Expenses
Depreciation Expenses
Occupancy Contribution
Total expenses from ordinary activities excluding borrowing
costs
Borrowing Costs
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expenses
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities
Net Profit

2001
$

4
4
4
4

10,188,331
2,437,598
1,062,385
13,688,314

9,725,581
2,248,598
872,289
12,846,468

5
5

5,479,505
4,539,244
2,475,491
345,657
209,657

5,292,060
4,306,028
2,459,687
337,687
153,002

5

13,049,554
161,486

12,548,464
132,131

477,274
-

165,873
-

477,274

165,873

1(h)

The Statement of Financial Performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes
to the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 22.

4

2000
$

Financial
WOLLONGONG UNICENTRE LIMITED
ABN 28 915 832 337

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2001
Note

2001
$

2000
$

Current Assets
Cash assets
Receivables
Inventories
Other

687,810
141,515
1,629,680
182,017

327,492
175,678
1,535,932
96,397

2,641,022

2,135,499

1,925,568
6,814,055
-

2,850,691
4,121,859
-

8,739,623

6,972,550

11,380,645

9,108,049

2,003,833
430,000
49,709
376,784

1,509,541
330,000
77,352
387,617

2,860,326

2,304,510

2,710,000
259,500
503,972

1,470,000
277,500
486,466

Total Non-Current Liabilities

3,473,472

2,233,966

Total Liabilities

6,333,798

4,538,476

Net Assets

5,046,847

4,569,573

5,046,847

4,569,573

5,046,847

4,569,573

7
8
9
10

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Occupancy Contribution
Intangibles

11
12
13

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Other
Provisions

14
15
16
17

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Other
Provisions

15
16
17

Equity
Retained Profits
Total Equity

18

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the notes
to the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 22.
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WOLLONGONG UNICENTRE LIMITED
ABN 28 915 832 337

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001
Note

2001
$

2000
$

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations
Cash payments in the course of operations
Interest received

14,178,594

12,655,924

(12,712,538)

(11,554,290)

54,261

Borrowing costs paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

(159,794)
24(ii)

91,947
(146,122)

1,360,523

1,047,459

(2,322,387)

(1,233,317)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets

182

Net cash used in investing activities

(2,322,205)

9,045
(1,224,272)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings

1,670,000

Repayments of borrowings

(348,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities

(18,000)

1,322,000

(18,000)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

360,318

(194,813)

Cash at the beginning of the financial year

327,492

522,305

687,810

327,492

Cash at the end of the financial year

24(i)

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes
to the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 22.
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Financial

notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2001
1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are:
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2000, Urgent
Issues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and
the Corporations Act 2001.
It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and, except where stated, does not take into account changing
money values or current valuations of non-current assets.
These accounting policies have been consistently applied and, except where stated, are consistent with those of the
previous year.
(b) Reclassification of financial information
Some line items and sub-totals reported in the previous financial year have been reclassified and repositioned in the
financial statements as a result of the first time application on 1 January 2001 of the revised standards AASB 1018
Statement of Financial Performance, AASB 1034 Financial Report Presentation and Disclosures and the new AASB
1040 Statement of Financial Position.
Adoption of these standards has resulted in the transfer of the reconciliation of opening to closing retained profits
from the face of the financial performance to Note 18.
Revenue and expense items previously disclosed as abnormal have been reclassified and are now disclosed as
individually significant items in Note 5 (a). These items are no longer identified separately on the face of the
statement of financial performance.
c) Revenue Recognition - Note 4
Revenues are recognised at fair value of the consideration received net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST). Exchanges of goods or services of the same nature and value without any cash consideration are not
recognised as revenues.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of returns, discounts and allowances) when control of the goods
passes to the customer.
Rendering of services
Revenue from rending services is recognised when the service has been fully provided.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the financial asset.
Sale of non-current assets
The gross proceeds of non-current asset sales are included as revenue at the date control of the asset passes to the
buyer, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.
The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of
disposal and net proceeds on disposal.
Any related balance in the asset revaluation reserve is tranferred to the capital profits reserve on disposal.
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(d) Members’ Fees
Members' fees are brought to account in the year to which the fees relate, and not necessarily the year in which the
University of Wollongong or Illawarra Technology Corporation Ltd, which collect those fees onbehalf of the Company,
remit them to the Company.
Entrance fees are included in members' fees.
(e) Children's Services Grants & Fees
Grants received are recognised in the period to which they relate.
Fee revenue is recognised when the fee, in respect of services provided, is receivable.
(f) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expense and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST, except where the
amount of GST is not recoverable form the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating
cash flows.
(g) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, amortisation of
ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings, foreign exchange losses net of hedged
amounts on borrowings, including trade creditors and lease finance charges.
Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the life
of the borrowings.
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which
take more than 12 months to get ready for their intended use or sale. In these circumstances, borrowing costs are
capitalised to the cost of the assets. Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs capitalised is those incurred in relation to that
borrowing, net of any interest earned on those borrowings. Where funds are borrowed generally, borrowing costs are
capitalised using a weighted average capitalisation rate.
(h) Taxation
The operations of the Company are exempt from income tax under Section 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment Act
(1997).
The operations of the Company are exempt from payroll tax under Sections 10.1(k) and 10.2 of the Payroll Tax Act
1971.
(i) Acquisitions of assets
All assets acquired including property, plant and equipment and intangibles other than goodwill are intially recorded at
their cost of acquisition at the date of acquisition, being the fair value of the consideration provided plus incidential
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable are recorded at their present
value, discounted at the rate applicable to the company if a similar borrowing were obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
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Financial

notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Expenditure, including that on internally generated assets other than research and development costs, is only
recognised as an asset when the entity controls future economic benefits as a result of the costs incurred, it is
probable that those future economis benefits will eventuate, and the costs can be measured reliably. Costs
attributable to feasibility and alternative approach assessments are expensed as incurred.
Items of plant and equipment less than $5,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition.

Occupancy Contributions
The Company from time to time contributes to the cost of construction of buildings, their improvements and
landscaping of land over which it has no security or tenure. Until 1997, except where such items had been revalued,
they were disclosed at their cost to the Company, not at their total cost, as contributions from the University of
Wollongong were not brought to account. The capitalised expenditures were written off over their expected useful
lives.
From 1 January 1997, a different accounting treatment was adopted for contributions to the cost of construction of
buildings occupied by the Company.

The Company's contributions to buildings owned by the University are now accounted for in the Balance Sheet as
Occupancy Contribution, pursuant to an agreement reached with the University of Wollongong.
Occupancy contribution to 31 December 1997 has been amortised at the University's nominated rate of 3.33% per
annum, based on an assessment by independent valuers of the buildings' expected useful life at 31 December 1996.
Refer Notes 12.
Occupancy contributions during 2001 have been valued at cost, and are amortised at 3.33% per annum.
Subsequent additional costs
Costs incurred on assets subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic
benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the consolidated entity in future
years. Costs that do not meet the criteria for capitalisation are expenses as incurred.
(j) Revisions of accounting estimates
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in current and future periods only.
(k) Receivables
The collectibility of debts is assessed at balance date and specific provision is made for any doubtful accounts.
Trade debtors to be settled within 90 days are carried at amounts due.
(l) Inventories
Stock has been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stock and bringing it to the existing condition and location.
These bases of valuation are consistent with those of previous years.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of each inventory line's normal selling pattern. Expenses of marketing,
selling and distribution to customers are estimated and are deducted to establish net realisable value.
(m) Leased assets
Leases under which the Company or its controlled entities assume substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Finance leases
Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and a lease liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments are recorded at the inception of the lease.
Lease liabilities are reduced by repayments of principal. The interest components of the lease payments are
expensed. Contingent rentals are expensed as incurred.
Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.
(n) Goodwill - Note 13
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration plus incidental costs over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired.
(o) Recoverable amount of non-current assets valued on cost basis
The carrying amounts of non-current assets valued on the cost basis, are reviewed to determine whether they are in
excess of their recoverable amount at balance date. If the carrying amount of a non-current asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the lower amount. The write-down is recognised as an expense in
the net profit or loss in the reporting period in which it occurs.
Where a group of assets working together supports the generation of cash inflows, recoverable amount is assessed in
relation to that group of assets.
In assessing recoverable amounts of non-current assets the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to their
present value, except where specifically stated.
(p) Depreciation and amortisation
Useful lives
All assets, including intangibles, have limited useful lives and are depreciated/amortised using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives.
Assets are depreciated or amortised from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally
constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and held ready for use.
Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods are reviewed annually for appropriateness. When changes are
made, adjustments are reflected prospectively in current and future periods only. Depreciation and amortisation are
expensed.
The depreciation/amortisation rates used for each class of asset are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment
Occupancy Contribution
Leasehold improvements
Plant & Equipment
Intangible
Goodwill

2001

2000

2.50% - 3.33%
10% - 20%
10% - 33%

2.50% - 3.33%
10% - 20%
10% - 33%

10 Years

10 Years

(q) Payables
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received. Trade accounts payable
are normally settled within 60 days.
(r) Bank loans
Bank loans are carried on the statement of financial position at their principal amount, subject to set-off
arrangements. Interest expense is accrued at the contracted rate and included in "Other creditors and accruals".
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for the year ended 31 December 2001
(s) Employee entitlements
Wages, salaries annual leave and sick leave

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave represent present obligations
resulting from employees' services provided up to the balance date, calculated at undiscounted amounts based on
current wage and salary rates including related on-costs. Leave is charged to the provision at the time leave is taken.
Long Service Leave
The provision for employee entitlements to long service leave represents the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows to be made resulting from employees' services provided up to balance date.
The provision is calculated using estimated future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and
expected settlement dates based on turnover history and is discounted using the rates attaching to national
government securities at balance date which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities.
Leave is charged to the provision at the time leave is taken.
Superannuation entitlements
Contributions to employee superannuation funds are charged against income as incurred. The Company is under no
legal obligation to make up any shortfall in the funds assets to meet payments due to employees.
(t) Provisions
A provision is recognised when a legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of a past event and it is probably
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, except
where noted below.

2 Change in accounting policy
Revenue
Children’s Services Grants and Fees
During the year, the method of recognising revenue from Childrens’ Services was changed, from recognising revenue when the
grant is received, to recognising revenue when the service is provided. This accounting policy change has resulted in an
additional $50,000 revenue being recognised for the year.

3 Corporate Information
Wollongong UniCentre Limited is a company limited by guarantee. It is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
The registered address of the company is:
Northfields Avenue
NORTH WOLLONGONG NSW 2500
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Note
Note
4

2001
$

2001
$

2 0 0 0 2000
$
$

Revenue from Ordinary Activities
Revenue from Operating Activities
Sale of goods revenue from operating activities
Related parties
Trading Income
Revenue from rendering of services
Members’ fees
Paid by related parties
Other
Total revenue from rendering of services
Other revenues from ordinary activities
from operating activities
Grants received
Related parties
Other
Rental income
Related parties
Other
Other - Commissions, Vending Machines, etc.
Related Parties - Commission
Interest received
from outside operating activities
Gross proceeds from the sale of property , plant & equipment
Total other revenues from ordinary activities

Total revenue from ordinary activities

5

760,472
9,427,859
10,188,331

339,555
9,386,026
9,725,581

2,435,623
1,975
2,437,598

2,246,910
1,688
2,248,598

443,000
39,380

215,000
40,483

81,524
175,613
158,229
110,196
54,261

103,138
246,362
125,477
40,837
91,947

182

9,045

1,062,385

872,289

13,688,314

12,846,468

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense
(a) Individually significant items included in profit from ordinary
activities before income tax expense
UniBar Development - Capital grant
Wages Expenses - GST implementation
Northern Wing Development - UniBar Write-offs

200,000
200,000

(19,067)
(47,008)
(66,075)

331,718

342,888

299

4,752

40,000
121,486
161,486

40,000
92,131
132,131

(b) Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense has
been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items:
Amounts set aside to provisions for employee entitlements
Net bad and doubtful debts expense including movements in provision
for doubtful debts
Borrowing Costs:
Interest paid or due and payable
Related parties
Bank loans
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

Lease rental expense - operating leases

106,398

79,714

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangibles
Amortisation of occupancy contribution

345,657
209,657
555,314

337,687
10,300
153,002
500,989

(b) Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense has
been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items: (continued):

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
6

Amounts received or due and receivable
by the Auditors for audit services

20,200

21,285

Amounts received or due and receivable
by the Auditors for other services

250

250

20,450

21,535

660,010
27,800

299,292
28,200

687,810

327,492

134,633
(8,000)
14,882
141,515

171,340
(8,000)
12,338
175,678

Cash assets
Cash at bank
Cash on hand

8

Receivables
Debtors
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Sundry Debtors

9

(166)

Auditors' Remuneration

Total auditors' remuneration

7

(182)

Inventories - at cost
Stock

-

catering
bar
books/retail/newsagency/software
post office

42,091
12,640
1,527,479
47,470

45,209
11,802
1,436,729
42,192

1,629,680

1,535,932

101,805
80,212
182,017

49,872
46,525
96,397

1 0 Other current assets
Accrued Income
Prepayments
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Note
Note

1 1 Property, Plant & Equipment
Building improvements
At Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment
At Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Motor vehicles
At Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Computer equipment
At Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Capital Works in Progress
At Cost
Total Property, plant and equipment net book value

2001
$

2001
$

2000
$

2000
$

3,063,678
(1,439,147)
1,624,531

2,947,200
(1,158,900)
1,788,300

713,008
(430,920)
282,088

703,519
(375,411)
328,108

15,230
(15,230)
-

15,230
(14,311)
919

135,125
(116,176)
18,949

122,613
(107,195)
15,418

-

717,946

1,925,568

2,850,691

1,788,300
18,822
97,657
(280,248)
1,624,531

1,587,808
484,529
(19,821)
(264,216)
1,788,300

Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

328,108
9,489
(55,509)
282,088

405,967
24,838
(40,216)
(62,481)
328,108

Motor Vehicles
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

919
(919)
-

3,965
(3,046)
919

Computer equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

15,418
12,512
(8,981)
18,949

17,361
6,000
(7,943)
15,418

Capital works in progress
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Transfer to building improvements
Transfer to occupancy contribution
Carrying amount at end of year

717,946
2,281,564
(97,657)
(2,901,853)
-

Total Property, Plant & Equipment
- at net book value

1,925,568

Property, Plant & Equipment
Building improvements
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Transfers from Capital Works in progress
Disposals
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

14
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Note
Note

2001
$

2 0 0 0 2000
$
$

3,632,429
(604,800)
3,027,629

3,632,429
(483,840)
3,148,589

586,856
(97,711)
489,145

586,856
(78,169)
508,687

500,000
(47,917)
452,083

500,000
(35,417)
464,583

2001
$

1 2 Occupancy Contribution
Building 11
At Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Child Care
At Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Union Library Link
At Cost
Accumulated amortisation

UniBar
At Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Total Occupancy Occupancy
Accumulated amortisation

2,901,853
(56,655)
2,845,198

-

7,621,138
(807,083)
6,814,055

4,719,285
(597,426)
4,121,859

Building 11
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of year

3,148,589
(120,960)
3,027,629

3,269,548
(120,959)
3,148,589

Child Care
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of year

508,687
(19,542)
489,145

528,230
(19,543)
508,687

Union Library Link
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of year

464,583
(12,500)
452,083

477,083
(12,500)
464,583

UniBar
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Transfer from capital works in progress
Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of year

2,183,907
717,946
(56,655)
2,845,198

Total Occupancy Contribution
Building 11
IT Arcade
Children's Services Centre
Northern Wing / UniBar

3,027,629
452,083
489,145
2,845,198

3,148,589
464,583
508,687
-

Total occupancy contribution

6,814,055

4,121,859

-

Occupancy contribution was transferred from the unincorporated entity, Wollongong UniCentre, to the Company on
incorporation. The assets were taken up at cost, along with the associated accumulated amortisation.
Occupancy contributions in 2000 and 1999 have been valued at cost and are amortised at 2.5% per annum,
reflecting the University's expectations of the useful life of the buildings to which contributions were made in 1998.
The rate of 3.33% has been used for contributions made in earlier years and in 2001.
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

1 3 Intangibles
Goodwill - newsagency
Accumulated amortisation

103,000
(103,000)
-

103,000
(103,000)
-

1 4 Payables
Sundry creditors
Accrued charges

1,711,283
292,550

1,204,014
305,527

2,003,833

1,509,541

100,000
330,000

330,000

430,000

330,000

400,000
2,310,000

500,000
970,000

2,710,000

1,470,000

1 5 Interest bearing liabilities
Current
Related party - University of Wollongong loan
Bank loan
Non-Current
Related party - University of Wollongong loan
Bank loan

A schedule of outstanding public borrowings or other repayable advances, setting out those debts that are due:
(a) not later than 1 year
(b) later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
(c) later than 5 years

430,000
1,720,000
990,000

330,000
1,470,000
-

after the end of the financial year.

3,140,000

1,800,000

Total facilities available:
Bill acceptance facility

2,640,000

2,970,000

Facilities utilised at balance date:
Bill acceptance facility

2,640,000

1,300,000

Financing Arrangements
(i) The Company has access to the following bill facility:

Facilities not utilised at balance date:
Bill acceptance facility

-

1,670,000

(ii) The Company has access to the following
National Australia Bank Mastercard facility:
Total facilities available:
Mastercard facility
Facilities utilised at balance date:
Mastercard facility
Facilities not utilised at balance date:
Mastercard facility

50,000

50,000

7,424

17,000

42,576

33,000

(iii) The Company has received a loan from the University of Wollongong, a related party, to finance the Company's
contribution to the building of the IT Arcade. The Company will expense the amount as occupancy contribution over
the expected useful life of the building, of 40 years.
Loan outstanding at balance date:
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

15. Interest bearing liabilities (continued)
The bank loan is in the form of a bill facility and is secured by a registered mortgage debenture over the assets and
undertakings of Wollongong UniCentre Limited and a guarantee and indemnity for $3,300,000 from the University of
Wollongong.
The average effective floating interest rate for the National Australia Bank loan is 5.2% (2000: 6.8%).
The fixed interest rate of the University of Wollongong loan is 8.0% per annum, and unsecured (2000: 8.0%).
1 6 Other Liabilities
Current
Commonwealth Department of Health and Family Services loan
Grants received in advance
Parent Fees in advance
Deposits held
Rent received in advance
Fees in Advance
Other

Non-current
Commonwealth Department of Health and Family Services loan

18,000
17,135
10,039
3,237
214
1,084

18,000
32,340
20,550
2,428
2,954
1,080

49,709

77,352

259,500

277,500

The Company has responsibility for repayment of a loan, made by the Commonwealth Department of Health and
Family Services to the University of Wollongong, to finance, in part, extensions to the Children's Services Centre.
277,500

Loan outstanding at balance date:

295,500

A schedule of outstanding public borrowings or other repayable advances, setting out those debts that are due:

(a) not later than 1 year
(b) later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
(c) later than 5 years

18,000
72,000
187,500

18,000
72,000
205,500

after the end of the financial year.

277,500

295,500

50,000
326,784

50,000
337,617

19

376,784

387,617

19

503,972

486,466

4,569,573
477,274
5,046,847

4,403,700
165,873
4,569,573

376,784
503,972
880,756

387,617
486,466
874,083

150

152

1 7 Provisions
Current
Long service leave
Annual leave

Non-Current
Long service leave
1 8 Retained profits
Retained profits at beginning of the year
Net Profit
Retained profits at end of the year

1 9 Employee Entitlements
Aggregate liability for employee entitlements, including on costs :
17
Current
17
Non-current

Number of employees
Number of employees at year end

17

20

Financial instruments
(a) Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and
financial liabilities is set out below:
Note Weighted
average
interest
2001
Financial assets
Cash
Receivables
Other debtors

7
8
10

4.8%
0%
0%

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Payables
Other creditors

15
14
16

5.2%
0%
0%

2000
Financial assets
Cash
Receivables
Other debtors

7
8
10

5.9%
0%
0%

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Payables
Other creditors

15
14
16

6.8%
0%
0%

Floating
interest
rate

Fixed interest maturing in
1 year or
1-5 years
more than 5
less
years

660,010
660,010

-

299,292
299,292

-

-

430,000
430,000

-

1,720,000
1,720,000

-

330,000
330,000

-

1,470,000
1,470,000

-

Non interest
bearing

Total

27,800
141,515
182,017
351,332

687,810
141,515
182,017
1,011,342

2,003,833
309,209
2,313,042

3,140,000
2,003,833
309,209
5,453,042

-

28,200
175,678
96,397
300,275

327,492
175,678
96,397
599,567

-

1,509,541
354,852
1,864,393

1,800,000
1,509,541
354,852
3,664,393

990,000
990,000

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from a counterparty failing to discharge a financial obligation. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts of the financial assets included in the balance sheet.
The Company does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.
(c) Net Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The directors consider the carrying amounts of bank term deposits, accounts receivable, accounts payable and bank loans
approximate net fair value.

2 1 Economic Dependency
The Company's trading activities do not depend on a major customer or supplier. However, the Company is
economically dependent on the continued existence of the operating and financial arrangements it has with the
University of Wollongong.
2 2 Contingent Liabilities
There were no known contingent liabilities existing at balance date.
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

2 3 Commitments
Capital Expenditure commitments
In the previous financial year, the Northern Wing Development project was
agreed to by directors to the value of $2,900,000. $2,848,689 was
contracted for building (within 12 months) but not payable at balance
date. An amount of $669,597 had been paid to contractors at 31
December 2000. No capital commitments were in existence at 31
December 2001.

-

2,179,092

Operating Lease Commitments
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals of plant and equipment,
not provided for in the financial statements and payable :
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Note

2 4 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

131,734
143,286

121,875
197,876

275,020

319,751

2001
$

2000
$

(i) Reconciliation of cash
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and short term
deposits at call, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:Cash assets

7

687,810

327,492

477,274

165,873

(ii) Reconciliation of operating profit before abnormal
items to net cash provided by operating activities
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax
Add/(less) items classified as investing/financing activities:
Profit on sale of non-current assets

(182)

(166)

Add/(less) non-cash items:
Amortisation of goodwill
Amortisation of occupancy contribution
Amounts set aside to provisions
Write off of bad debts
Write off of Redundant Assets
Depreciation
Net cash provided by operating activities before change in
assets and liabilities

209,657
331,718
142
345,657

10,300
153,002
342,888
4,752
51,157
337,687

1,364,266

1,065,493

Change in assets and liabilities during the financial year:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in prepayments/other debtors
(Increase)/decrease in trade/term debtors
Increase in trade creditors/accruals
Decrease in other current liabilities
Decrease in provisions

Net cash provided by operating activities

(93,749)
(85,619)
34,021
494,292
(27,643)
(325,045)

119,278
(23,285)
(2,791)
175,767
(56,955)
(230,048)

(3,743)

(18,034)

1,360,523

1,047,459
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

2 5 Events subsequent to balance date
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material or unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect
significantly the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company, in
subsequent financial years.

2 6 Directors' Remuneration

2001
$

2000
$

The number of directors of the Company whose income from the
Company or any related party falls within the following bands :
$0
$9,999
$ 50,000 - $ 59,999
$ 60,000 - $ 69,999
$110,000 - $119,999
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise made available, to all
directors of the Company from the Company or any related party.

Number
16
1
1
-

Number
14
1

118,212

112,490

2 7 Related Parties
(i) Directors
The names of each person holding the position of director of Wollongong UniCentre Limited during the financial year
are V Badham, D Beale, B Fraser, R Haley, C Hayward, L Kane-Maguire, B Kinghorn, D Rome, D Williams, S Zulian,
N Pennington (Leave of Absence), S Gower, T Kirk-Downey, D Patterson, S Salem, G Smith & C Patton. The resignation of
B Kinghorn was accepted by the Board of Directors during the year. D Beale, L Kane-Maguire and S Zulian were replaced
during the year. Professor J Patterson attended one meeting as the appointed representative of the Vice-Chancellor.
Details of directors' remuneration are set out in Note 26.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Company since
the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests at year end.
Directors transactions with the company or its controlled entities
A director of the Company, Mr D M Williams, is a director of David Morgan Williams Pty Ltd, which provides temporary
and casual staff to the Company.
The terms and conditions of the transactions with the director related company were no more favourable than those
available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to
All transactions with the director related company are on normal terms and conditions.
The value of the transactions during the financial year with David Morgan Williams Pty Ltd was $18,438 (2000:
$14,151).
(ii) Non-director related parties
The classes of non-director related party is:
*
controlling entity of the company
*
commonly controlled entities
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

2 7 Related Parties (continued)
Transactions
All transactions with non-director related parties are on normal terms and conditions.
(a)

Loans
The Company received a loan from the University of Wollongong in 1998. Refer Note 15(iv).
The fixed interest rate charged is 8% per annum on the outstanding balance.

$
$
2 7 RelatedInterest
Partiesbrought
(continued)
to account by the Company on the loan during the year was $40,000 (2000: $40,000).
(b)

Other Transactions
Income
570,219
110,196
433,000

301,745
105,511
205,000

1,113,415

612,256

558,300
52,255
8,000
6,313

474,756
58,075
8,000
13,360

624,868

554,191

2,392,772

2,228,257

Receivables - current
Trade receivables

152,430

54,861

Payables - current
Trade creditors

178,535

68,395

Payables - non current
Other loans

500,000

500,000

Sales
Commissions
Grants for specific purposes
Total Income

Expenses
Goods and services
Contribution to General Manager’s salary
Contribution to Function Manager’s vehicle
University’s share of Lodge profit
Total Expenses

Other
Student Fees collected by the University

(c) Balances with Controlling Entity

(iii) Other Related Parties
The Company enters into transactions with other entities controlled by the University of Wollongong;
Illawarra Technology Corporation Ltd (ITC) and University of Wollongong Recreation and Aquatic Centre Ltd (URAC).

(a)

Transactions
Income
Income from sales
Grants for Specific Purposes

Expenses
Other income
Student Fees collected by ITC

190,253
10,000

76,275
10,000

200,253

86,275

274

8,385

32,880

18,653
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2001
$

2000
$

2 7 Other Related Parties (continued)
(b) Balances with Related Parties
Receivables - current
Trade receivables
Other - Student Fees

Payables - current & non current

6,915
-

13,151
1,530

6,915

14,681

-

9,327

(c) Directors of Related Parties (not being directors of the Company)
From time to time directors of related parties or their director-related entities may purchase goods or services from
the Company. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by the Company's
employees or customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.
(iv) Ulitmate Controlling Entity
The ultimate controlling entity of the Company is the University of Wollongong.
End of Audited Financial Report
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SupplementaryNotes
NotestotoFinancial
FinancialStatements
Statements
2 8 Supplementary
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001
Income
Members fees
Life members fees
Commissions
Interest received
Sundry income
Rent received
Sales of Assets
Profit on Catering trading
Loss on Shoalhaven Campus
Loss on Children's Services
Profit on UniShop trading
Profit on Post Office trading
Profit on Lodge trading
Entertainment machines
Grants for specific purposes
Total Income
Less: Expenditure
Clerical
Wages
Wages On Costs
Cleaning Building 11
Wages
Wages On Costs
Office
Telephone
Postage
Printing & Stationery & Computer
Maintenance
Security
Cleaning
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance and Insurance
Services
UniCentre catering
Fringe Benefits Tax

2001
$

$

29(a)
29(b)
29(c)
29(d)
29(e)
29(f)
28(a)

2000
$

$

2,435,623
1,975
38,608
54,261
1,831
215,595
182
305,760
(75,784)
(97,655)
436,489
98,167
6,313
13,199
235,000

2,246,910
1,688
10,736
91,947
5,810
216,362
13,015
292,434
(33,254)
(43,791)
323,100
57,878
13,837
16,708
35,000

3,669,564

3,248,380

554,257
173,094

506,611
160,359

727,351

666,970

357,696
79,283

368,348
112,067

436,979

480,415

64,039
9,986
47,492

47,254
16,933
55,659

121,517

119,846

8,351
39,226
54,287
105,721

22,617
29,225
44,042
144,640

207,585

240,524

17,855
5,098

16,427
3,228

22,953

19,655
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$
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Supplementary
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)

Entertainment
Entertainment activities
Wages
Wages On Costs
Publications and promotions

Minor Equipment & Lease Equipment
UniShop equipment
Buildings Equipment
Catering equipment
Finance One
Childcare Equipment
Office Equipment
Office computers Lease
Marketing Printing Lease
Motor Vehicle Leases
UniShop operating leases

Accommodation office
Wages
Wages On Costs
Printing & Stationery

Other Expenditure
Advertising
Amortisation of goodwill
Amortisation of occupancy contribution
Audit and accounting fees
Bank charges
Consultancy
Computer software expenses & Agreements
CSSO Grant
Depreciation
General Manager salary contribution
Interest
Insurances
Legal & consultancy expenses
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of assets
Asset Write-off & Disposal
Provision for doubtful debts & bad debts
Other Expenses
Subscriptions / Licences
Staff training
Shoalhaven Campus Admin Exp
Vehicle expenses
GST Implementations
Northern Wing development - UniBar write-offs

Total Expenditure
Operating Profit/(Loss)

24

2001
$

167,819
131,666
36,155
22,135

87,685
142,470
40,580
40,685

357,775

311,420

6,065
1,160
44,015
23,238
24,300
5,293
66,923
3,669
28,564
7,242

3,970
12,921
5,761
87,394
6,867
0
50,054
3,657
15,831
10,173

210,469

196,628

24,178
1,181
358

20,648
1,799
65

25,717

22,512

3,285
209,657
23,800
8,941
14,775
55,705
10,000
345,657
52,255
161,486
21,500
34,532
353
486
19,826
97,607
22,079
-

6,340
10,300
153,002
19,015
11,246
42,308
17,049
10,000
337,687
58,075
132,131
20,846
25,033
8,879
4,149
4,817
418
10,753
71,530
4,050
10,834
19,067
47,008

1,081,944

1,024,537

3,192,290

3,082,507

477,274

165,873

Financial

notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Note
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Statements
Supplementary
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)
(a)

Grant Income

Related parties
Accommodation Office recurrent grant
Shoalhaven Startup Subsidy
Northern Wing Development - UniBar
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2001
$

20,000
15,000
200,000

20,000
15,000
-

235,000

35,000

Fuel Silo
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

642,871
292,925
349,946

660,016
320,194
339,822

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

256,641
78,751
55,000

229,801
77,668
29,467

Profit/(loss) on Fuel Silo

(40,446)

Olive Rumba
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

89,032
41,327
47,705

139,271
61,406
77,865

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

49,709
10,612
13,201

61,978
16,451
12,859

(25,817)

(13,423)

Supplementary
Supplementary Notes
Notesto
toFinancial
FinancialStatements
Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001
(a) Food & Beverage Catering Services
Public Catering

Profit/(loss) on Olive Rumba
Bamboo Fiction
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

154,378
65,961
88,417

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

82,215
17,244
19,702

Profit/(loss) on Olive Rumba

(30,744)

Asian Bamboo Fiction
Rent
Less: Overheads / Expenses

8,333
766

Profit/(loss) on Asian Bamboo Fiction

7,567

Engine
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit
Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses
Profit/(loss) on Engine

2,886

228,192
115,176
113,016

201,060
111,980
89,080

95,452
19,653
34,051

97,701
23,004
22,715

(36,140)

(54,340)
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Statements
(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)
UniBar Food trading
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

2001
$
2001
$

2000
$
2000
$

224,707
115,259
109,448

148,530
71,264
77,266

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

65,234
15,591
33,970

35,476
6,400
8,898

Profit/(loss) on UniBar Food trading

(5,347)

26,492

Keira Buffet
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

598,704
289,377
309,327

594,926
282,145
312,781

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

166,333
36,599
31,397

165,405
42,359
21,995

74,998

83,022

10,186
4,584
5,602

29,125
13,058
16,067

3,974

10,454

1,628

5,613

McKinnon Restaurant Rental

33,208

30,000

Profit/(loss) on McKinnon Restaurant

34,836

35,613

2001
$
354,964
121,175
233,789
354,964

2000
$
381,031
132,377
248,654
381,031

121,175
149,949
233,789
27,572
33,665
149,949

132,377
150,497
248,654
32,994
28,983
150,497

Wages
Profit/(loss)
onOn
SalCosts
Paradise
Overheads / Expenses
Profit / (Loss)
on Public
Catering
Profit/(loss)
on Sal
Paradise

27,572
22,603
33,665
32,254
22,603

32,994
36,180
28,983
85,686
36,180

Food &/ (Loss)
Beverage
Machines
Profit
on Vending
Public Catering

80,520
32,254

109,251
85,686

Food & Beverage Vending Machines
Profit / (Loss) on Public Catering, including Vending

80,520
112,774

109,251
194,937

Profit / (Loss) on Public Catering, including Vending

112,774

194,937

Profit/(loss) on Keira Buffet
McKinnon Building Restaurant
Food Re Thought Liquor
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Less: Expenses
Overheads
Profit on McKinnon Liquor

Trading Statements (continued)
Sal Paradise
For
the Year Ended 31 December 2001
Sales
Less:
Cost of goods sold
Sal
Paradise
Gross Profit
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Less: Wages
Gross
Profit
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses
Less: Wages
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Note

2001
$

2000
$

Supplementary
Notes to Financial Statements
2 9 Trading
Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)

UniBar Trading
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

557,958
222,082
335,876

387,303
185,656
201,647

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

141,204
30,678
62,738

121,068
37,019
19,693

Profit/(loss) on UniBar Trading

101,256

23,867

1,049,105
300,943
748,162

972,020
269,606
702,414

383,589
63,182
209,750

360,274
86,288
182,986

91,641

72,866

89

764

91,730

73,630

305,760

292,434

(b) Shoalhaven Campus
Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

42,106
23,925
18,181

19,027
9,874
9,153

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads / Expenses

68,517
9,429
16,019

31,231
2,917
8,259

Loss on Shoalhaven Campus

(75,784)

(33,254)

Function trading
Sales (including room hire)
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit
Less: Wage costs
Wages On Costs
Overhead / Expenses
Profit/(loss) on Function trading
Add: Bad Debts Expense transferred from Functions to General
Expenses
Adjusted Profit/(Loss) on Functions trading
TotalProfit
Profiton
onAll
All Catering
CateringTrading
Trading
Total
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2001
$

2000
$

Notes to Financial Statements
2 9 Supplementary
Trading Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)

(c) Children's Services
Parents Fees
Fee Relief Payments
Grants
Related Party - University of Wollongong
SRC
SRC
Other Grants
Other Income

524,673
393,471

557,831
259,670

185,000
30,000
4,380
1,137,524

185,000
30,000
5,483
100
1,038,084

Less: Wage costs
Wages On Costs
Operating expenses

873,300
170,446
191,486

783,232
165,082
134,561

Profit/(Loss) on Children's Services

(97,708)

(44,791)

Add: Bad Debts Expense transferred from Childrens Services to
General Expenses
Loss on Children's Services

53
(97,655)

1,000
(43,791)

(d) UniShop trading (including Books, Software, Retail and Newsagent)
Sales - Retail
Sales - Newsagency
Sales - Books / Software
Total Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

1,177,730
430,814
3,351,724
4,960,268
3,598,867
1,361,401

1,167,896
340,865
3,178,031
4,686,792
3,431,435
1,255,357

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Overheads/ Expenses

608,468
133,233
183,211

589,467
160,678
182,112

Profit on UniShop trading

436,489

323,100

Less: Cost of goods sold
Gross Profit

516,514
95,634
612,148
352,330
259,818

458,611
129,090
587,701
356,185
231,516

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Expenses

115,535
34,272
11,844

129,165
37,462
7,011

98,167

57,878

(e) Post Office Trading
Sales
Commissions

Profit on UniShop trading

28

Financial

notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Note

Notes to Financial Statements
2 9 Supplementary
Trading Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2001 (continued)

2001
$

2000
$

2001

2000

$

$

(f) Lodge Operations
Sales

62,213

69,777

Less: Wages
Wages On Costs
Expenses
Servicing
Maintenance
Profit share to University

31,259
3,882
8,574
795
5,077
6,313

25,377
4,799
10,157
1,222
1,025
13,360

6,313

13,837

673,290

610,204

Profit on Lodge trading
Profit on all trading units
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Cultural Competitions

Winners in the UniCentre Acquisitive Art Award:

DJ Competition

2D
Commended
Phillip Constantine – Dream Journey

UNICENTRE INTERESTING ACHIEVEMENTS

UniBar won the 2001 Master Builders’ Association Excellence in Construction Award and the Best New or
Refurbished Facility at ACUMA 2001.
UniCentre also won the following awards at ACUMA 2001: Best Menu Presentation/Merchandise Brochure
for the Conferences and Functions Solutions brochure. Other awards included Runner Up for Best Innovation,
New Idea or Use of Technology (What’s On Email List) and Runner Up for Best Newsheet (TimeOut
entertainment newsletter).
Over 280 students competed in UniCentre competitions.
Of 45 Clubs and Societies there are over 2,000 members who received up to $30,000 in funding from the
UniCentre.
Over 90,000 queries were answered at the UniCentre Enquiries and Ticket Counter.

Ten entrants battled it out this year in the DJ
Competition, held on Wednesday 1 August
in the UniBar with over 300 on-lookers. A
very high standard proved to be very
popular with the crowd. The winner of the
Wollongong event, Sebastian Clarke, went
on to represent the University at UWS in the
state final.
1 st :
2 nd:
2 nd:
4 th:

DJ Flux, Sebastian Clarke
DJ DNA, Daniel Piper
ADSR, Tim Grey
DJ Stama, David Stamataros

3D
Winner
Emma Rutherford – Bottomless Pots
Runner-up
Dominic Ferrante – Devinci Dreamin’Shirt
Photography/Digital
Winner
Aaron Seeto – Still: The Killer
Runner-up
Susan Barnett – Reflecting History

UniBar website received over 8,000 hits between its launch in May through to December.
Acquisitive Art Award
Over 40,000 copies of TimeOut were printed and distributed.
Again this year, with the generous assistance from the
Creative Arts Department, the award was hung and
presented in one of the Creative Arts’ galleries, Blue Tac.
The winners went on to represent the University of
Wollongong at the National Tertiary Art Prize, which was
held at Newcastle’s Watt Space. The very high standard
of entrants was obvious, with Aaron Seeto winning in
the Photography/Digital category, and Emma Rutherford
commended in the 3D category.

UniCrew visited and distributed confectionery to over 312 lectures.
Over 22,000 UniMovies tickets were sold.
Over 67 bands performed gigs on campus.
Over 1,500 events with over 65,000 attendees were held in the Conference and Function Centre.
23 weddings were held in the Conference and Function Centre and University Hall.

The National Tertiary Art Prize is a very prestigious
competition, so congratulations must go to both of our
successful entrants.

165 students applied to join UniCrew.

Poetry Competition
Readings were held in the UniBar this year on
Wednesday 5 September. Not only did the
finalists have a chance to read, but other
entrants also performed their works.

The winners were:
1st
2nd
3rd

Carmel Gold
Vivienne Grant
Jason Gallagher

Statistics

Annual UniCentre Subscription Fee
UniCentre Life Members
Student Members
University Staff Members
UniCentre Staff

2001

2000

1999

$200.20
3,651
14,500

$200.20
3,539
13,067
1,552
267

$177
3,421
12,900
1,508
237

246

UNICENTRE AWARDS
Each year the UniCentre recognises the efforts of individual campus community members which have enhanced
the life of the campus community or, in the case of the Staff Award provided outstanding customer service.
2001 WINNERS
VOLUNTARY SERVICE A WARD
Jesse Mitchell in recognition of his contribution to the UniCentre as an active member of the UniCrew; in the
management of the Clubs and Societies website, including the creation of over 25 new club websites; in the
development of the UniBar website and currently in the training to UniShop staff in Dreamweaver.
STAFF AWARD
Angelo Gaudiosi for his caring attitude to customers and colleagues alike and his commitment to his work, along
with his honesty, integrity and reliability.

UNICENTRE AWARD
Wollongong UniCentre established the UniCentre Award during 1998.
Judged on merit and sponsored by Campus Cards, the award offers a
worthy student a monetary scholarship to assist in defraying study costs
whilst at the University of Wollongong.
This year’s winner was Christopher Portelli who is enrolled in a Bachelor
of Creative Arts degree majoring in Creative Writing, is interested in
writing novels for young children and has had articles published in both
the Illawarra Mercury and Tertangala newspapers.
UniCentre congratulates Christopher on being the recipient of the fourth
UniCentre Award and wishes him success in his studies.

Body Language
Out of the Water
Walk to the Planck Constant

